
LAFCO of Monterey County 
   _ 

 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY 
 

AGENDA 
 

    LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION  
OF MONTEREY COUNTY 

 
Monday, December 1, 2014 

4:00 p.m. 

Board of Supervisors Chambers 
Monterey County Government Center 

168 West Alisal Street, First Floor 
Salinas, California 

The Local Agency Formation Commission welcomes you to its meetings.  This meeting has been noticed according to the Brown 
Act.  If you want to submit documents, please bring 15 copies for distribution.  The meeting will be broadcast live on Comcast 
Cable TV Channel 28, and is rebroadcast every Monday at 4:00 p.m.  Agendas and reports are available on our website at least 
72 hours before each meeting. 
   

Roll Call 

Call to Order 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Public Comments 
Anyone may address the Commission briefly about items not already on the Agenda.  Please fill out a Speaker 
Request Form available on the rostrum. 

Special Business 

1.   Resolution of Appreciation for Supervisor/Commissioner Louis R. Calcagno, upon    
      his Retirement from Elected Office, for Distinguished Public Service and Leadership.  
      Recommended Actions:  Adopt Resolution and receive presentation by Chair  
      Snodgrass.  
 
2.   Certificate of Recognition for Henry M. Gowin, Principal Aide to Supervisor/  
      Commissioner Louis R. Calcagno, for his Service to the County of Monterey and the  
      Local Agency Formation Commission. 
      Recommended Actions:  Receive presentation by Chair Snodgrass. 
 
3.   Presentation of 2014 Achievement Awards for “Outstanding LAFCO Professional” and     
      “Distinguished Service” to LAFCO Executive Officer Kate McKenna, AICP, from the  
      Board of Directors of the California Association of Local Agency Formation  
      Commissions. 
      Recommended Action:  Receive presentation by Ms. Pamela Miller, Executive  
      Director, California Association of Local Agency Formation Commissions. 
 
 

                            2014  
         Commissioners 

 
                                     Chair 
                  Steve Snodgrass  
     Special District Member  

 
                             Vice Chair 
           Sherwood Darington  
                     Public Member 

     
              Fernando Armenta  

     County Member, Alternate 
 

                Louis R. Calcagno  
                  County Member  

         
                       Matt Gourley 
  Public Member, Alternate 

 
                            Joe Gunter   
     Alternate, City Member 

          
                      Maria Orozco 
                         City Member 

                                           
                 Warren E. Poitras 
      Special District Member, 
                                Alternate 

 
                          Ralph Rubio 
                         City Member 

 
                       Simón Salinas 
                   County Member 

                 
                 Graig R. Stephens  
      Special District Member 

 
                                 

                            Staff 
 

           Kate McKenna, AICP 
                 Executive Officer 

 
 

132 W. Gabilan Street, #102 
                 Salinas, CA  93901 

 
                       P. O. Box 1369 
                Salinas, CA  93902 

 
          Voice:  831-754-5838 
              Fax:  831-754-5831 

 
  www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 
 

  



4.     Staff Introductions. 
        Recommended Action:  Receive information. 

Consent Agenda 
All items on the Consent Agenda will be approved in one motion and there will be no discussion on individual items, unless a 
Commissioner or member of the public requests a specific item to be pulled from the Consent Agenda for separate discussion.   
 

5.     Approve Draft Minutes from the September 22, 2014 LAFCO Regular Meeting. 
        Recommended Action:  Approve minutes.   

      6.     Accept Draft Meeting Notes of Budget and Finance Committee Meeting of November 7, 2014. 
              Recommended Action:  Accept meeting notes.   

      7.     Approve Warrant Register for the Month of October 2014. 
              Recommended Action:  Approve register.    

      8.     Adopt a Schedule of Regular LAFCO Meetings for 2015.  
              Recommended Action: Adopt schedule. 
 
      9.     Approve Budget Amendment No. 1 to the Adopted Annual Budget for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 to  
               Transfer $5,000 from Line Item 7245 (General Legal Services) to Line Item 7230 (Temporary  
               Help Services – Clerical).  

         Recommended Action: Adopt resolution. 

         
New Business 
 
10.   Consider Audit Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30 2014. 
        Recommended Action:  Receive presentation by Ms. Karen Campbell, CPA, Bianchi, Kasavan and  
        Pope, LLP, and approve the Audit Report. 
 
11.    Consider Financial Statements for Period Ending June 30, 2014.  
        Recommended Action: Receive presentation by Mr. Mike Briley, CPA, Managing Partner, Hayashi  

Wayland Accounting and Consulting, LLP, and approve the Financial Statements.   
 
12.   Consider Financial Statements for Period Ending September 30, 2014.  
        Recommended Action: Receive presentation by Mr. Mike Briley, and approve the Financial     

 Statements. 
 
13.   Consider Report and Presentation on Activities of the California Association of Local Agency  

Formation Commissions. 
        Recommended Actions:  

(a) Receive a report from the Executive Officer;  
(b) Receive an informational presentation from Ms. Pamela Miller, CALAFCO Executive 

Director; 
(c) Approve a comment letter regarding a CALAFCO legislative proposal relating to LAFCO 

oversight of Joint Powers Authorities; and 
(d) Provide any direction as deemed appropriate.  

 
14.   Consider Mid-Year Review and Amendment of the Adopted Annual Work Program for FY 2014-

2015.  
Recommended Action:  Adopt resolution. 

 
 
 
 
LAFCO Regular Meeting of December 1, 2014                                                                                       Page 2 of 3 
 

 



 
Public Hearing  
 
15.   Public Hearing to Consider a Proposal from the Santa Lucia Community Services District to Activate 

the District’s  Latent Power to Provide Broadband Communication Services.  (LAFCO File No. 14-04).  
 Recommended Actions: Conduct a Public Hearing and Adopt a Resolution: 

(a) Considering the finding made by the Santa Lucia Community Services District that the 
proposal is exempt from environmental review pursuant to Sections 15303 and 15304 of the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines;   

(b) Activating the District’s latent power to provide broadband communication services; and  
        (c)  Authorizing the Executive Officer to hold Conducting Authority (“Protest”) Proceedings on  

               Thursday, January 8, 2015 at 4:00 p.m. in the LAFCO Office.  
 
Executive Officer Reports  
The Executive Officer may make brief announcements about LAFCO activities, for information only.   
 
Commissioner Comments 

           Individual Commissioners may comment briefly on matters within the jurisdiction of LAFCO.  No discussion or action is appropriate  
other than referral to staff or setting a matter as a future agenda item.   

 
 Correspondence   

 
           16.   Letter from J. Eric Tynan, General Manager, Castroville Community Services District to LAFCO  

        Commission, June 20, 2014, pertaining to a recent consolidation action. (Information Only) 
  

        17.  Letter from Simón Salinas, 3rd District Supervisor, County of Monterey, to Executive Officer Kate  
       McKenna,  September 26, 2014, pertaining to a special districts training session. (Information Only) 

 
        Closed Session  
 

Pursuant to Government Code section 54946.9(d)(2), the Commission will meet with its General 
Counsel in Closed Session regarding one matter of significant exposure to litigation. 

 
        Adjournment to the Next Meeting 
 
       The next Regular LAFCO Meeting is tentatively scheduled for Monday, January 26, 2015 at 4:00 p.m.  

subject to approval of the 2015 Meeting Schedule (See Agenda Item No. 8). 
 
Alternative Formats and Facility Accommodations:  If requested, the agenda will be made available in alternative formats to persons with a disability, 
as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 USC 12132) and the federal rules and regulations adopted in 
implementation thereof.  Also if requested, facility accommodations will be made for persons with disabilities.  Please contact (831) 754-5838 for 
assistance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LAFCO Regular Meeting of December 1, 2014                                                                                            Page 3 of 3  

 



LAFCO of Monterey County ____________________________________________________________                     

  
 
 
 
KATE McKENNA, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
 
DATE:  December 1, 2014 
 
TO:  Chair and Members of the Formation Commission 
 
FROM:  Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION – LOUIS R. CALCAGNO 
 
 
SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Commission adopt and present a Resolution of Appreciation to 
Supervisor/Commissioner Louis R. Calcagno. 
 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT:  
 
On behalf of the Commission, Chair Snodgrass will present a Resolution of Appreciation to 
Supervisor/Commissioner Louis R. Calcagno upon his retirement from elected office with a distinguished 
record of service and leadership.  
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Kate McKenna, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
  

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
P.O. Box 1369                            132 W. Gabilan Street, Suite 102 
Salinas, CA 93902                                               Salinas, CA  93901 
Telephone (831) 754-5838                                 Fax (831) 754-5831 

www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 

AGENDA 
ITEM 
NO. 1 

 
 



LAFCO of Monterey County ____________________________________________________________                     

  
 
 
 
KATE McKENNA, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
 
DATE:  December 1, 2014 
 
TO:  Chair and Members of the Formation Commission 
 
FROM:  Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION - HENRY M. GOWIN 
 
 
SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Commission present a Certificate of Recognition to Henry Gowin, Principal 
Aide to Supervisor/Commissioner Louis R. Calcagno.  
 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT: 
 
Following the January 2015 retirement of Supervisor/Commissioner Calcagno from public office, and a 
period of transition, Henry Gowin has announced an intention to depart from his employment with the 
County of Monterey.  His career with the County began in 1998 as staff to then-Supervisor Judy 
Pennycook, and in 2003 he joined the staff of Supervisor Calcagno.  Serving in a chief of staff capacity, 
Mr. Gowin has been instrumental in providing support to Supervisor/Commissioner Calcagno and the 
constituents of this County.  He has provided generous and enthusiastic assistance to the Local Agency 
Formation Commission and Executive Officer in resolving issues, organizing field trips and community 
meetings, and hosting the successful 2005 and 2012 CALAFCO Annual Conferences held in Monterey.   
 
On behalf of the Commission, Chair Snodgrass will present a Certificate of Recognition to Henry Gowin 
for his valuable contributions and service to the County of Monterey and the Local Area Formation 
Commission of Monterey County, and to wish him well in his future endeavors. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Kate McKenna, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
P.O. Box 1369                            132 W. Gabilan Street, Suite 102 
Salinas, CA 93902                                               Salinas, CA  93901 
Telephone (831) 754-5838                                 Fax (831) 754-5831 

www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 

AGENDA 
ITEM 
NO. 2 

 
 



LAFCO of Monterey County _________________________________________________________________                     

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
KATE MCKENNA, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
DATE:  December 1, 2014 
 
TO:  Chair and Members of the Formation Commission 
 
FROM:  Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: PRESENTATION OF 2014 ACHIEVEMENT AWARDS – CALIFORNIA 

ASSOCIATION OF LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSIONS 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Receive presentation of 2014 Achievement Awards from Pamela Miller, Executive Director of the 
California Association of Local Agency Formation Commissions. 
 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT:  
 
At the recent 2014 California Association of Local Agency Formation Commissions’ Annual Conference 
held in Ontario, California, Executive Officer Kate McKenna was the recipient of two awards from this 
statewide organization.   
 
The 2014 Achievement Award for “Outstanding LAFCO Professional” recognizes an Executive Officer, Staff 
Analyst or Legal Counsel for exemplary service during the past year.  The 2014 Achievement Award for 
“Distinguished Service” is given to a member of California’s LAFCO community to recognize long-term 
service by an individual. 
 
Ms. Pamela Miller, CALAFCO’s Executive Director, has kindly offered to present these awards before the 
full Commission, on behalf of her Board of Directors.  
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Kate McKenna, AICP 
Executive Officer 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
P.O. Box 1369                            132 W. Gabilan Street, Suite 102 
Salinas, CA 93902                                               Salinas, CA  93901 
Telephone (831) 754-5838                                 Fax (831) 754-5831 

www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 

AGENDA 
ITEM 
NO. 3 

1 
 



LAFCO of Monterey County _________________________________________________________________                     

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
KATE MCKENNA, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
DATE:  December 1, 2014 
 
TO:  Chair and Members of the Formation Commission 
 
FROM:  Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: STAFF INTRODUCTIONS 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Receive introduction of new staff member. 
 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT:  
 
Executive Officer Kate McKenna will introduce Taven M. Kinison Brown, Associate Analyst, Local 
Agency Formation Commission of Monterey County.  
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Kate McKenna, AICP 
Executive Officer 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
P.O. Box 1369                            132 W. Gabilan Street, Suite 102 
Salinas, CA 93902                                               Salinas, CA  93901 
Telephone (831) 754-5838                                 Fax (831) 754-5831 

www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 

AGENDA 
ITEM 
NO. 4 

1 
 



 
AGENDA 

ITEM 
NO. 5 LAFCO of Monterey County   

   _ 
 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY 
 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 
LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION  

OF MONTEREY COUNTY 
 

Monday, September 22, 2014 
4:00 p.m. 

Board of Supervisors Chambers 
Monterey County Government Center 

168 West Alisal Street, First Floor 
Salinas, California 

 
Roll Call 
 
Members Present 
Commissioner Armenta 
Commissioner Darington 
Commissioner Gourley 
Commissioner Orozco 
Commissioner Poitras 
Commissioner Rubio 
Commissioner Salinas 
Commissioner Stephens  
 
Members Absent (Excused Absences) 
Commissioners Calcagno, Gunter, Snodgrass. 
 
Members Not Present (Presence Not Required) 
None. 
 
Staff Present 
Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer  
Leslie  J. Girard, General Counsel  
Darren McBain, Senior Analyst  
Gail Lawrence, Clerk to the Commission 
 
Call To Order 
The Local Agency Formation Commission was called to order by Chair Pro-Tem 
Darington at 4:00 p.m. in the Monterey County Board of Supervisors Chambers. 
 
Pledge of Allegience 
Commissioner Calcagno led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
 
 

                            2014  
         Commissioners 

 
                                     Chair 
                  Steve Snodgrass  
     Special District Member  

 
                             Vice Chair 
           Sherwood Darington  
                     Public Member 

     
              Fernando Armenta  

     County Member, Alternate 
 

                Louis R. Calcagno  
                  County Member  

         
                       Matt Gourley 
  Public Member, Alternate 

 
                            Joe Gunter   
     Alternate, City Member 

          
                      Maria Orozco 
                         City Member 

                                           
                 Warren E. Poitras 
      Special District Member, 
                                Alternate 

 
                          Ralph Rubio 
                         City Member 

 
                       Simón Salinas 
                   County Member 

                 
                 Graig R. Stephens  
      Special District Member 

 
                                 

                            Staff 
 

           Kate McKenna, AICP 
                 Executive Officer 

 
 

132 W. Gabilan Street, #102 
                 Salinas, CA  93901 

 
                       P. O. Box 1369 
                Salinas, CA  93902 

 
          Voice:  831-754-5838 
              Fax:  831-754-5831 

 
  www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 
 

  



      Publics Comments 
      Kate McKenna, LAFCO Executive Officer, introduced the local Wells Fargo Bank, South Main  
      Branch Business Banking Management team of Audoro Mellin,Jr., Branch Manager/Vice President,  
      Jeremy Salviejo, Business Relationship Banker, and Raul Figueroa, Broker Associate. LAFCO is in the  
      process of placing its business account with Wells Fargo Bank.    
 
      Publics Comments     
      There were no Public Comments on items not on the Agenda.   
          
Consent Calendar 
 
1.      Adopt the Draft Minutes of June 23, 2014 . 
  
2.      Accept List of Anticipated Future Agenda Items. 
 
3.      Approve Register of Checks for May, June, July and August 2014. 
 
4.      Approve Amendment No. 5 To Executive Officer’s Employment Agreement.  
 
5.      Accept Report on Activities of the California Association of Formation Commissions. 
 
There were no Public or Commissioner comments for the Consent Items.  
 
Commission Action  
Upon motion by Commissioner Salinas, seconded by Commissioner Rubio, the Consent Items were   
approved.   Absent:  Commissioners Calcagno, Gunter and Snodgrass. Abstain: Commissioner Armenta 
(who was not present at the September 22, 2014 LAFCO meeting).  
 
 
New Business 
 
6.    Consider appointments to LAFCO Committees.  
  
There were no Public or Commissioner comments.  
 
Commission Action  
Upon motion by Commissioner Salinas, seconded by Commissioner Rubio, the LAFCO 2014 Committee 
Appointments were adopted. Absent: Commissioners Calcagno, Gunter and Snodgrass. Abstain: 
Commissioner Armenta (who was not present at the September 22, 2014 LAFCO meeting).  
 
 
Public Hearing 

7.    Conduct a Public Hearing to Consider the Following Items Pertaining to the City of Gonzales: 

a. A Draft 2014 Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Study for the City of Gonzales, prepared by 
LAFCO of Monterey County 

and 

b. An Application by the City of Gonzales for a Comprehensive Sphere of Influence Amendment. 
The proposed Amendment would expand the City’s Sphere of Influence by approximately 2,038 
acres (LAFCO File No. 14-03). 

               Recommended Action:  Adopt a Resolution to: 

2 
 



i.    Find that the Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Study is exempt from the 
    Sections 15306 and 15061(b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines; 

ii.   Approve the 2014 Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Study for the City of Gonzales;  
iii.   Find that, pursuant to CEQA, the City of Gonzales has certified an Environmental  

   Impact Report (EIR) and a subsequently adopted 2014 EIR Addendum that  
   adequately address the potential environmental effects of the proposed Sphere of  
   Influence Amendment; and    

iv.  Approve the proposed Sphere of Influence Amendment. 
     
Chair Pro-Tem Darington opened the Public Hearing. There were public comments from Rene L. 
Mendez, Gonzales City Manager and Tom Truszkowski, Deputy City Manager.  
 
There were Public Comments from Elizabeth Modena, Superintendent, Gonzales City Schools; Amy 
White, Land-Watch; and Bill Carothers.    
There were Commissioner Comments from Commissioners Salinas, Rubio, Orozco and Gourley.  
 
Commissioner Salinas stated that Agenda Item 7 – Subsection 7.3 – (MSR and SOI Study) last page 
of Attachment 3, Section 8-Tax Sharing, has a typographical error to be changed to read as follows:  
“the City agrees, to the extent allowed by law that all local taxes, for any annexation that is not 
consistent with the MOA, shall not accrue to the benefit of the County City.” 
 
Chair Pro Tem Darington closed the Public Hearing.   
 
Commission Action   
Upon motion by Commissioner Orozco, seconded by Commissioner Rubio, the 
Commission adopted a Resolution (i) finding that the Municipal Service Review is exempt from the 
Sections 15306 and 15061 (b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines; (ii) Approved the 2014 Municipal Service 
Review and Sphere of Influence Study for the City of Gonzales with the following change to Subsection 7.3, 
Attachment 3, Subsection 8-Tax Sharing to read as follows:  “The City agrees, to the extent allowed 
by law that all local taxes, for any annexation that is not consistent with the MOA, shall not accrue 
to the benefit of the County ‘City’ ;” (iii) Find that, pursuant to CEQA, the City of Gonzales has 
certified an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) and a subsequently adopted 2014 EIR Addendum 
that adequately address the potential environmental effect of  the proposed Sphere of  Influence 
Amendment; and (iv) Approved the proposed Sphere of Influence Amendment to expand the City’s 
Sphere of Influence by approximately 2,038 acres. LAFCO File No. 14-03.  Absent: Commissioners 
Calcagno, Gunter and Snodgrass. 
 
Executive Officer’s Report 
Executive Officer McKenna gave a report.   
 
Commissioners Comments 
Commissioner Salinas thanked the Executive Officer for attending and participating in the Special  
District Training and Mixer, in Greenfield, CA.  September 20, 2014.   
        
Adjournment to the Next Meeting 
      
*The next Regular LAFCO meeting is scheduled for Monday, December 1, 2014 at 4:00 p.m.   
 
  * Note: the October 27th   Meeting was canceled.   

3 
 



 
AGENDA 

ITEM 
NO. 6 

LAFCO of Monterey County 
   _ 

 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY 
 

 

 
MEETING NOTES 

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

Friday, November 7, 2014 
10:00 a.m. 

LAFCO Office 
132 W. Gabilan Street, Suite 102 

Salinas, California  93901 
 

    Roll Call 
  
    Members Present 
    Commissioner Simón Salinas 
    Commissioner Ralph Rubio  
    Commissioner Graig Stephens  
 
    Members Absent (Excused Absence) 
    None.  
 
    Staff Present 
    Kate McKenna, Executive Officer 
    Mike Briley, Managing Partner, Hayashi Wayland  
    Karen Campbell, Senior Audit Manager 
 
    Call to Order 
    The Budget and Finance Committee of the Local Agency Formation Commission of 
    Monterey County was called to order by Commissioner Salinas at 10:00 a.m.  
 
    Public Comment 
    There were no public comments. 
 
    New Business 
             
    1.   Consider Draft Annual Audit Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2014. 
                  
          Executive Officer McKenna and Karen Campbell presented a report.  
          The Committee initiated a discussion with the auditor regarding the  
          implementation of GASB 68, which establishes new financial reporting  
          requirements for governments that provide employees with pension benefits.    
 
          After discussion, the Committee unanimously recommended approval of the  
          Draft Annual Audit Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2014.    

                           
2014  

Committee 
 

Chair 
Simón Salinas 

County Member 
 

Ralph Rubio 
City Member 

  
Graig R. Stephens  

Special District Member 
 
 
 
 

Staff 
 

Kate McKenna, AICP 
Executive Officer 

 
 
 
 

132 W. Gabilan Street, #102 
Salinas, CA  93901 

 
P. O. Box 1369 

Salinas, CA  93902 
 

Voice:  831-754-5838 
Fax:  831-754-5831 

 
    www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 

  



2.  Consider DraftYear-End Financial Statements for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2014.   
 
        Executive Officer McKenna and Mike Briley reviewed the report.  
 
        After discussion, the Committee unanimously recommended approval of the Draft Year-End  
        Financial Statements for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2014.   
 
3.     Consider Draft Financial Statements for Quarter One Period Ending September 30, 2014.  
         
         Executive Officer McKenna and Mike Briley reviewed the report.  
 
         After discussion, the Committee unanimously recommended approval of the Draft Financial  
         Statements for Quarter One Period Ending September 30, 2014.   
 
4.     Accept Profit/Loss Budget vs. Actuals Worksheet Dated October 24, 2014.  
  
         Executive Officer McKenna and Mike Briley reviewed the report. 
 
         After discussion, the Committee accepted the Profit/Loss Budget vs.  Actuals Worksheet dated  
         October 24, 2014.  
 
5.      Consider Budget Amendment No. 1 to the Adopted Annual Budget for Fiscal Year 2014-2015, to Transfer  
         Funds from Line Item 7245 (General Legal Services) to Line Item 7230 (Temporary Help Services –  
         Clerical).  
  
         Executive Officer McKenna presented a report.  After discussion, the Committee unanimously  
         recommended approval of the proposed budget Amendment No. 1 to the Adopted Annual Budget for 
         FY 2014-2015.   
 
Other Business 
 
None.  
 
Adjournment  
  
The Committee meeting was adjourned at 10:45 a.m.  The next Budget and Finance Committee Meeting  
 to be announced.  
 
 

2 
 



 

LAFCO of Monterey County _________________________________________________________________                     

  
   

 
 

KATE McKENNA, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
 
DATE:  December 1, 2014 
 
TO:  Chair and Members of the Formation Commission 
 
FROM:  Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: LAFCO CHECK REGISTER – OCTOBER 2014 
 
SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Commission approve the check register for October 2014. 
 
 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT: 
 
Attached is the list of LAFCO checks written in October 2014.   
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Kate McKenna, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
Attachments: Check Register for October 2014  

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
P.O. Box 1369                            132 W. Gabilan Street, Suite 102 
Salinas, CA 93902                                               Salinas, CA  93901 
Telephone (831) 754-5838                                 Fax (831) 754-5831 

www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 

AGENDA 
ITEM 
NO. 7 



1 of 1

DATE CK#  NAME  DESCRIPTION  CHECK AMOUNT 
 DEPOSIT 
AMOUNT  ACCOUNT BALANCE 

196,870.03$               

10/02/2014 DEP Deposit-Refund 45.00 196,915.03
10/03/2014 EFT CalPERS Health Oct 2014 Health Insurance EFT#1000472733 3,081.22 193,833.81
10/08/2014 EFT AT&T Mobility Telephone Service 8/14/14-9/13/14 276.88 193,556.93
10/09/2014 EFT QuickBooks Payroll Service For Payroll Period Ending 10/3/14 Paid 10/10/14 8,791.62 184,765.31
10/10/2014 EFT CalPERS 457 Program CalPERS 457 Deferred Compensation Contribution 2,017.21 182,748.10
10/10/2014 EFT CalPERS Retirement CalPERS Retirement Contribution 2,015.40 180,732.70
10/10/2014 EFT EDD State Payroll Tax Deposit 765.62 179,967.08
10/10/2014 EFT EFTPS Federal Payroll Tax Deposit 2,248.54 177,718.54
10/10/2014 4771 Darren J McBain For Payroll Period Ending 10/3/14 Paid 10/10/14 0.00 177,718.54
10/10/2014 4772 Gail M Lawrence For Payroll Period Ending 10/3/14 Paid 10/10/14 0.00 177,718.54
10/10/2014 4773 Kathryn M. McKenna For Payroll Period Ending 10/3/14 Paid 10/10/14 0.00 177,718.54
10/10/2014 4774 Thomas A. McCue For Payroll Period Ending 10/3/14 Paid 10/10/14 0.00 177,718.54
10/10/2014 4775 Cardmember Service CaLafco Annual Conference Registration  in Ontario, CA 2,399.89 175,318.65
10/10/2014 4776 IBM Corporation Leased Computers for Lafco Staff 10/1/14-10/31/14 171.16 175,147.49
10/10/2014 4777 ID Concepts, LLC Background Check on New Employee - Brown 107.50 175,039.99
10/10/2014 4778 Leslie Girard Travel Reimbursement for CaLafco Annual Meeting 139.70 174,900.29
10/10/2014 4779 Monterey County Herald 24 Week Subscription 161.32 174,738.97
10/10/2014 4780 Postmaster Box#1369 12 Month Renewal 146.00 174,592.97
10/10/2014 4781 Quality Water Enterprises, Inc. Water Dispenser Rental 10/1/14-10/31/14 19.46 174,573.51
10/10/2014 4782 SlingShot Connections Temp Services: Jimenez, Alma for W/E 9/28 & 10/5 664.00 173,909.51
10/10/2014 4783 Staples Advantage Office Supplies 395.01 173,514.50
10/10/2014 4784 Sunrise Express Binder Deliveries 226.84 173,287.66
10/10/2014 4785 The Salinas Californian Notice of Public Hearing 236.25 173,051.41
10/23/2014 EFT QuickBooks Payroll Service For Payroll Period Ending 10/4/14-10/17/14 Paid 10/24/14 8,986.33 164,065.08
10/24/2014 EFT CalPERS 457 Program CalPERS 457 Deferred Compensation 2,552.71 161,512.37
10/24/2014 EFT CalPERS Retirement CalPERS Retirement 2,874.38 158,637.99
10/24/2014 EFT EDD State Payroll Tax Deposit 901.15 157,736.84
10/24/2014 EFT EFTPS Federal Payroll Tax Deposit 2,722.72 155,014.12
10/24/2014 4786 Darren J McBain For Payroll Period Ending 10/4/14-10/17/14 Paid 10/24/14 0.00 155,014.12
10/24/2014 4787 Gail M Lawrence For Payroll Period Ending 10/4/14-10/17/14 Paid 10/24/14 0.00 155,014.12
10/24/2014 4788 Kathryn M. McKenna For Payroll Period Ending 10/4/14-10/17/14 Paid 10/24/14 0.00 155,014.12
10/24/2014 4789 Thomas A. McCue For Payroll Period Ending 10/4/14-10/17/14 Paid 10/24/14 0.00 155,014.12
10/24/2014 4790 Taven M Kinison Brown For Payroll Period Ending 10/4/14-10/17/14 Paid 10/24/14 2,156.11 152,858.01
10/24/2014 4791 AT&T Telephone Service from 9/12/14-10/11/14 152.46 152,705.55
10/24/2014 4792 AT&T Mobility Telephone Service 9/14/14-10/13/14 189.05 152,516.50
10/24/2014 4793 Bianchi, Kasavan & Pope, LLP Progress Billing #1 Audit Services 2014-2015 5,000.00 147,516.50
10/24/2014 4794 California Special Districts Association Member ID#6739 2015 Membership Dues 1,081.00 146,435.50
10/24/2014 4795 FedEx Office Customer Administrative Svcs Lafco Commission Packet 9/22 813.69 145,621.81
10/24/2014 4796 Hayashi & Wayland, LLP Accounting Services #72520 3,000.00 142,621.81
10/24/2014 4797 Principal Life November 2014 Benefits: LTD,ADD,STD,Life 358.75 142,263.06
10/24/2014 4798 SlingShot Connections Temp Services: Jimenez, Alma for W/E 9/21/14 & 10/12/14 964.00 141,299.06
10/24/2014 4799 United Group Insurance Trust November 2014 Dental $440.11;Vision $50.84 490.95 140,808.11
10/24/2014 4800 Darren McBain CaLafco Conference Meal Reimbursement 18.58 140,789.53
10/24/2014 4801 Simon Salinas CaLafco Conference Mileage and Meal Reimbursement 432.96 140,356.57
10/24/2014 4802 City of Gonzales VOID: Printer Error 0.00 140,356.57
10/24/2014 4803 City of Gonzales Project Fees Reimbursement on File No. 14-03 200.00 140,156.57

56,758.46$                    45.00$                  

140,156.57$               Ending Balance 10/31/14

LAFCO
LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION

OF MONTEREY COUNTY
WARRANT REGISTER
FOR OCTOBER 2014

Beginning Balance  10/1/14



LAFCO of Monterey County _______________________________________________________________                     

 LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
 P.O. Box 1369 132 W. Gabilan Street, Suite 102 

Salinas, CA 93902  Salinas, CA 93901 
Telephone (831) 754-5838 Fax (831) 754-5831 
                                 www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 

KATE McKENNA, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
 
DATE:  December 1, 2014 
 
TO:  Chair and Members of the Formation Commission 
 
FROM:  Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: SCHEDULE OF REGULAR MEETINGS FOR 2015 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
It is recommended that the Commission approve the attached schedule of regular LAFCO Meetings for 
2015. 
 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT: 
 
The attached draft schedule provides for regular LAFCO meetings on the fourth Monday of each month, 
with the following exceptions this year: 
 

• March - Meeting scheduled on the fifth Monday – March 30, 2015. 
• July – No meeting to allow a summer recess.   
• September –Meeting scheduled on the third Monday – September 21, 2015.  
• November – No Meeting due to Thanksgiving Holiday, combined with early 

December meeting.   
• December – Meeting scheduled on the first Monday – December 7, 2015 to avoid conflict with 

holiday schedule later in the month.   
 
If the need arises, the Commission may set special meetings in accordance with the bylaws. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Kate McKenna, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
Attachment:  Schedule of regular LAFCO meetings for 2015 

AGENDA 
ITEM 
NO. 8 

 
 



LAFCO of Monterey County 
 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY 
 

 
2015 SCHEDULE OF REGULAR LAFCO MEETINGS  

Adopted _____ 
 
 

January 26 
 

February 23 
 

March 30 
 

April 27 
 

May 18 
 

June 22 
 

July – No Meeting 
 

 August 24 
 

September 21 
 

October 26 
 

November – No Meeting 
 

December 7 
 
 
All regular meetings begin at 4:00 p.m. and will be held in the Board of Supervisors Chambers, 
located on the first floor of the Monterey County Government Center, 168 West Alisal, Salinas, 
California. 

Prepared: 11/19/14  
 



LAFCO of Monterey County _________________________________________________________________                     

  
 
 
KATE McKENNA, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
 

DATE:  December 1, 2014 
 
TO:  Chair and Members of the Formation Commission 
 
FROM:  Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO ADOPTED FY 2014-2015 BUDGET  
 
 
SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The LAFCO Budget and Finance Committee recommends adoption of the attached Resolution approving 
Amendment No. 1 to the Fiscal Year 2014-2015 budget.  The amendment will transfer $5,000 from Line Item 
7245 (General Legal Services) to Line Item 7230 (Temporary Help Services – Clerical), with no net change 
in the overall budget.  

 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT: 
 
At a meeting on November 7, the LAFCO Budget and Finance Committee considered and recommended 
approval of one budget-related action. The proposed budget amendment will supplement the available 
funds for a vendor to provide part-time, temporary clerical services to the LAFCO office.   
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
The proposed amendment will add $5,000 to this year’s budgeted line item for temporary clerical 
assistance. It can be accomplished by moving funds out of the General Legal Services line item, with no 
overall net change to the adopted budget. Please refer to the attached worksheet. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Kate McKenna, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
cc:  Mr. Mike Briley, Hayashi & Wayland 
 
Attachments:  Resolution and FY 2014-2015 Budget Amendment No. 1   
 
 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
P.O. Box 1369                            132 W. Gabilan Street, Suite 102 
Salinas, CA 93902                                               Salinas, CA  93901 
Telephone (831) 754-5838                                 Fax (831) 754-5831 

www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 

AGENDA 
ITEM 
NO. 9 

1 
 



  Attachment 9.1 
 

THE LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY 
RESOLUTION NO. 14-XX 

 
AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO THE ADOPTED FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 BUDGET  

 

 WHEREAS, these proceedings are taken in conformance with the provisions of the Cortese-
Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000, commencing with Section 56000 et seq. 
of the Government Code; and 

WHEREAS, the Local Agency Formation Commission of Monterey County adopted the Fiscal 
Year  2014-2015 budget on April 28, 2014; and  

WHEREAS, the Budget & Finance Committee of the Local Agency Formation Commission of 
Monterey County met on November 7, 2014 to conduct a periodic review of the adopted budget, and 
recommended adoption of a budget amendment, as specified below, to address mid-fiscal-year needs;  

NOW, THEREFORE, the Local Agency Formation Commission of Monterey County does 
HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE AND ORDER as follows: 

1. The Commission adopts Amendment No. 1 to the adopted Fiscal Year 2014-2015 budget, to 
transfer $5,000 from Line Item 7245 (General Legal Services) to Line Item 7230 (Temporary 
Help Services – Clerical), with no net change in the overall budget.  

 
    UPON MOTION of Commissioner ___________________, seconded by Commissioner _________________, 

the foregoing resolution is adopted this 1st day of December 2014 by the following vote: 
 

AYES:    Commissioners:   
NOES:  Commissioners:   
ABSENT:  Commissioners:   
ABSTAIN:  Commissioners:  

 
____________________________________________ 
Steve Snodgrass, Chair 
Local Agency Formation Commission of Monterey County 
 
ATTEST: I certify that the within instrument is a true and 

complete copy of the original resolution of said 
Commission on file within this office. Witness 
my hand this 1sh day of December 2014 

 By:   _________________________________ 
    Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 



LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY 
PRELIMINARY BUDGET WORKSHEET - AMENDMENT NO. 1 
FISCAL YEAR  2014-2015
Nov. 7, 2014

1

Adopted Budget 
Fiscal Year   2014-15

Proposed Budget 
Amendment No. 1

Proposed Amended 
Budget FY 2014-15 

6000 Employee Salaries 419,000.00$               -$                              419,000.00$               
6100 Employee Benefits 185,000.00$               185,000.00$               

2220-Accrued Leave Reserve -$                            -$                              -$                            
2230-Post-Retirement Healthcare Obligation Reserve -$                            -$                              -$                            

2001 Litigation Settlement Agreement Costs -$                            -$                              -$                            
7000 Postage and Shipping 3,000.00$                   -$                              3,000.00$                   
7010 Books and Periodicals 1,000.00$                   -$                              1,000.00$                   
7030 Copy Machine Charges 6,500.00$                   6,500.00$                   
7040 Outside Printers 5,000.00$                   -$                              5,000.00$                   
7060 Office Supplies 4,500.00$                   -$                              4,500.00$                   
7070 Office Equipment and Furnishings -$                            -$                              -$                            
7080 Computer/Hardware/Peripherals 2,500.00$                   -$                              2,500.00$                   
7085 Computer Support Services (Fixed Costs) 7,500.00$                   -$                              7,500.00$                   
7090 Computer Support Services (Variable Costs) 6,000.00$                   6,000.00$                   
7100 Computer Software 500.00$                      -$                              500.00$                      
7105 Meeting Broadcast Services 3,300.00$                   -$                              3,300.00$                   
7110 Property and General Liability Insurance 5,300.00$                   -$                              5,300.00$                   
7120 Office Maintenance Services 400.00$                      -$                              400.00$                      
7130 Other Equipment Maintenance -$                            -$                              -$                            
7140 Travel 7,000.00$                   -$                              7,000.00$                   
7145 CALAFCO Travel Expenses -$                        -$                              -$                            
7150 Training, Conferences and Workshops 8,500.00$                   -$                              8,500.00$                   
7160 Vehicle Mileage 2,000.00$                   -$                              2,000.00$                   
7170 Rental of Buildings 23,300.00$                 -$                              23,300.00$                 
7200 Telephone Communications 6,000.00$                   -$                              6,000.00$                   
7230 Temporary Help Services (Clerical) 2,000.00$                   5,000.00$                     7,000.00$                   
7240 Outside Professional Services - Total for Line Items  7242 - 7249 62,000.00$                 -$                              57,000.00$                 

7242  Accounting and Financial Services 37,500 -$                              37,500.00$                 
7245   General Counsel and Special Counsel 11,500.00$                 ($5,000) 6,500.00$                   
7247   Human Resources  -$                            -$                              -$                            
7248   Annual Audit 13,000.00$                 -$                              13,000.00$                 
7249   Temporary In-House Professional Services -$                            -$                              -$                            

7250 Miscellaneous Office Expenses 600.00$                      -$                              600.00$                      
7260 Legal Notices 4,000.00$                   -$                              4,000.00$                   
7261 Pass-Through Expenses -$                            -$                              -$                            
7270 Recruitment Advertising -$                            
7280 LAFCO Memberships 4,700.00$                   -$                              4,700.00$                   
7290 Litigation Reserve -$                              

XXXX Records Storage and Security 10,000.00$                 10,000.00$                 
7295 Contingency Reserve -$                            -$                              -$                            

SUB TOTAL EXPENDITURES (see Note 1) 779,600.00$               -$                              779,600.00$               
LESS PASS-THROUGH EXPENSES (Acct. 7261)  - -$                              
TOTAL EXPENDITURES (NET) (see Note 1) 779.600.00 -$                              779,600.00$               



LAFCO of Monterey County ____________________________________________________________                     

  
 
 
KATE McKENNA, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
 
 
DATE:  December 1, 2014 
 
TO:  Chair and Members of the Formation Commission 
 
FROM:  Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: AUDIT FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2014 
 
 
SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Budget and Finance Committee recommends that the Commission: 
 
 1.  Receive a presentation from Ms. Karen Campbell, CPA; 
 2.  Seek public comment, and 
 3.  Discuss and adopt the final audit for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014. 
 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT: 
 
The Budget and Finance Committee met on November 7 to review and recommend adoption of the 
independent auditor’s report for the fiscal year ending on June 30, 2014. A request to show comparative 
year data has been implemented in the current audit report.  
 
Karen Campbell, CPA, Bianchi, Kasavan and Pope, has issued an unqualified opinion, the highest level of 
assurance that an auditor can provide to a public agency.  Ms. Campbell will present the report and 
respond to questions.   
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Kate McKenna, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
Enclosure: 
 Final Audit for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2014 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
P.O. Box 1369                            132 W. Gabilan Street, Suite 102 
Salinas, CA 93902                                               Salinas, CA  93901 
Telephone (831) 754-5838                                 Fax (831) 754-5831 

www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 

AGENDA 
ITEM 
NO. 10 

































































LAFCO of Monterey County ____________________________________________________________                     

  
 
 
 
KATE McKENNA, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
 
 
DATE:  December 1, 2014 
 
TO:  Chair and Members of the Formation Commission 
 
FROM:  Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: DRAFT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR JUNE 30, 2014 
 
 
SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Budget and Finance Committee recommends that the Commission: 
 
 1.  Receive a presentation from Mr. Mike Briley, CPA; 
 2.  Seek public comment, and 
 3.  Discuss and adopt the draft financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2014. 
 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT: 
 
The Budget and Finance Committee met on November 7 to review and recommend adoption of financial 
statements for the period ending June 30, 2014.   
 
Mike Briley, CPA and Managing Partner, Hayashi Wayland, will present the report and respond to 
questions.  The report has been reconciled as part of the independent audit process (Agenda Item No. 10).   
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Kate McKenna, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
Enclosure: 
  

Financial Statements for Period Ending June 30, 2014 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
P.O. Box 1369                            132 W. Gabilan Street, Suite 102 
Salinas, CA 93902                                               Salinas, CA  93901 
Telephone (831) 754-5838                                 Fax (831) 754-5831 

www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 

AGENDA 
ITEM 
NO. 11 

 
 

































LAFCO of Monterey County ____________________________________________________________                     

  
 
 
 
KATE McKENNA, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
 
DATE:  December 1, 2014 
 
TO:  Chair and Members of the Formation Commission 
 
FROM:  Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: DRAFT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 2014 
 
SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Budget and Finance Committee recommends that the Commission: 
 

1. Receive report from Executive Officer; 
2. Seek public comment, and 
3. Adopt the draft Financial Statements for the Quarter One Period ending September 30, 2014. 

 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT: 
 
The Budget and Finance Committee met on November 7 to review and recommend adoption of financial 
statements for the first quarter ending September 30, 2014. 
 
Income and expenses are as anticipated for this period.  As of September 30, almost all contributions had 
been received from local agencies (all contributions were received by November 1).  Actual expenses are 
below the budgeted expenses.   
 
Mr. Mike Briley, CPA and Managing Partner, Hayashi Wayland, will be available to assist in responding 
to questions. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Kate McKenna, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
Enclosure: 
 Draft Financial Statements, September 30, 2014 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
P.O. Box 1369                            132 W. Gabilan Street, Suite 102 
Salinas, CA 93902                                               Salinas, CA  93901 
Telephone (831) 754-5838                                 Fax (831) 754-5831 

www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 

AGENDA 
ITEM 
NO. 12 

 
 































 

LAFCO of Monterey County _________________________________________________________________                     

  
 
 
 
 
 
KATE McKENNA, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 

DATE:  December 1, 2014 

TO:  Chair and Members of the Commission  

FROM:  Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: ACTIVITIES OF THE CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION OF LOCAL AGENCY 
FORMATION COMMISSIONS  (CALAFCO) 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

It is recommended that the Commission:  
(a) Receive a report from the Executive Officer;  
(b) Receive an informational presentation from Ms. Pamela Miller, CALAFCO Executive Director;  
(c) Approve a comment letter regarding a CALAFCO legislative proposal relating to LAFCO 

oversight of Joint Powers Authorities; and 
(d) Provide any direction as deemed appropriate.  

EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT: 

This report introduces a presentation by CALAFCO Executive Director Pamela Miller; provides 
information about CALAFCO activities and 2014 chaptered legislation; and discusses 2015 CALAFCO 
legislative proposals. A draft comment letter has been prepared for review and action (Attachment 6), 
addressing a legislative proposal about LAFCO oversight of Joint Powers Authorities. 

CALAFCO Presentation (Information) 

Ms. Pamela Miller, Executive Director of the California Association of Local Agency Formation 
Commissions, has graciously agreed to attend the Commission’s meeting to introduce herself and present 
an overview of CALAFCO activities.  LAFCO of Monterey County is a charter member of this statewide 
organization.   

Conference, Calendar and Sphere Newsletter (Information) 

Attachment 1 is the program from the 2014 CALAFCO Annual Conference held in Ontario, California in 
October.  Commissioner Salinas, General Counsel Les Girard, and three LAFCO staff members attended 
the conference.  CALAFCO Executive Director Miller sent a letter (Attachment 2) thanking the 
Commission for LAFCO of Monterey County’s participation in the conference.  

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
P.O. Box 1369                            132 W. Gabilan Street, Suite 102 
Salinas, CA 93902                                               Salinas, CA  93901 
Telephone (831) 754-5838                                 Fax (831) 754-5831 

www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 

AGENDA 
ITEM 

NO. 13 

    1   



As 2014 draws to a close, two staff members will attend a CALAFCO University class on legal topics on 
December 8.  Attachment 3 is CALAFCO’s 2015 Events Calendar, including an April staff workshop 
(Grass Valley) and a September annual conference (Sacramento). Executive Officer Kate McKenna has 
volunteered to serve on the 2015 conference planning committee.  Two CALAFCO University classes will 
be scheduled and added to the 2015 Calendar.  

Attachment 4 is the October 2014 issue of “The Sphere” publication by CALAFCO.  

2014 Chaptered Legislation (Information)  

Highlights of 2014 chaptered legislation affecting LAFCO are presented on pages 12-14 of The Sphere. 
Staff will perform a detailed review of LAFCO’s locally adopted policies and procedures to determine 
whether any updates are needed to comply with the law.  Any recommended updates will be presented 
at the Commission’s next meeting in January 2015.    

2015 Legislative Program (Information or Action)  

Pages 13-14 of The Sphere discuss CALAFCO’s 2015 legislative proposals and activities. CALAFCO has 
requested input on additions or changes to the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act or other ideas for 2015 
LAFCO-related legislation. Annual review of CALAFCO’s legislative program by our LAFCO is an early 
opportunity to help shape CALAFCO’s issues and positions for the coming legislative season. The 
CALAFCO Board will consider input from member LAFCOs in December, and will adopt initial 2015 
legislative priorities at that time.  Based on that guidance, the CALAFCO Legislative Committee will 
review all LAFCO-related legislation and recommend actions by the Board of Directors.  Member 
LAFCOs will have the opportunity to comment on legislation to CALAFCO, or directly to legislators, 
throughout the season.  

The Commission may offer comments or suggestions regarding any of the identified 2015 legislative 
proposals, or offer other input to CALAFCO. 

2015 Legislative Proposal – LAFCO Oversight of Joint Powers Authorities (Action Item) 

A CALAFCO working group has drafted a legislative proposal on the topic of LAFCO oversight of Joint 
Powers Authorities (Attachment 5).  CALAFCO has requested comments.  Attachment 6 is a draft 
comment letter for review and possible action, expressing concerns about the proposal. 

A Joint Powers Authority (JPA) is an entity in which two or more public agency members, such as cities 
or special districts, agree to jointly exercise any power common to all the JPA’s members.  LAFCO has 
existing legal authority to study and consider JPAs in Municipal Service Reviews, and to directly regulate 
the services and boundaries of individual member agencies within JPAs. However, JPAs themselves exist 
outside LAFCO’s regulatory oversight, and do not have LAFCO-regulated boundaries or spheres of 
influence. A 2014 chaptered law, taking effect on January 1, 2015, specifically identifies that LAFCO is 
authorized to request information for studies, and that JPAs are required to respond to such requests.  

CALAFCO’s JPA Working Group has drafted a proposal to create additional JPA-related requirements.  
The proposal, including language changes in the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act, is provided as 
Attachment 5 and was discussed at October’s CALAFCO conference.  In summary, the proposed changes 
would: 

1. Expand and add a new requirement for JPAs to file copies of their agreements and amendments 
with LAFCOs in step with existing reporting to the Secretary of State,  

2. Clarify existing law to allow LAFCOs to include JPAs in municipal service reviews for purposes 
of assessing the availability and adequacy of governmental services within a defined region if 
deemed appropriate by local commissions, and 

    2   



3. Clarify existing law to define JPAs as public agencies for purposes of eligible entities to contract 
for new/extended outside services and confirm applicability of exemptions are determined by 
LAFCOs.  

In consultation with LAFCO General Counsel Girard, the Executive Officer has identified several 
concerns in the attached draft comment letter.   

 
ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS: 
 
In lieu of authorizing the recommended comment letter (Attachment 6), the Commission may direct the 
Executive Officer to forward a different set of comments, or no comments, to the CALAFCO Legislative 
Committee.  The Commission may also provide other CALAFCO-related direction, as appropriate.  
 
Respectfully Submitted,  

 
Kate McKenna, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
Attachments: 
 

1. 2014 CALAFCO Annual Conference Program (Information) 
2. CALAFCO Executive Director Pamela Miller letter dated October 28, 2014 (Information) 
3. CALAFCO 2015 Events Calendar (Information) 
4. The Sphere, October 2014 (Information) 
5. CALAFCO’s Joint Powers Authority Work Group Draft Proposal to the CALAFCO Legislative 

Committee (Information) 
6. Draft Comment Letter Regarding a CALAFCO Legislative Proposal Relating to LAFCO 

Oversight of JPAs (Action Item) 

    3   



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 2



22001155  EEvveennttss  CCaalleennddaarr
JANUARY 

21-23 California Association of Sanitation 
Agencies Conference (Palm Springs) 

23 CALAFCO Legislative Committee 
(Sacramento) 

29 CALAFCO Board of Directors Strategic 
Retreat (Irvine) 

30 CALAFCO Board of Directors Meeting 
(Irvine) 

FEBRUARY 

27 CALAFCO Legislative Committee 
(Conference call) 

MARCH 

4 Association of CA Water Agencies 
Legislative Symposium (Sacramento) 

20-22 Local Government Commission 
Ahwahnee Conference (Yosemite) 

20 CALAFCO Legislative Committee 
(Ontario) 

APRIL 

8-10 Fire District Association Annual 
Meeting (Napa) 

15-17 CALAFCO Staff Workshop (Grass 
Valley) 

27-28 California Assn. of Sanitation Agencies 
Legislative Policy Forum (Sacramento) 

29 League of Cities Legislative Day 
(Sacramento) 

MAY 

1 CALAFCO Legislative Committee 
(Sacramento) 

5-8 Association of California Water Agencies 
Conference (Sacramento) 

8 CALAFCO Board of Directors Meeting 
(Sacramento) 

19-20 California Special Districts Assn. Legislative 
Days (Sacramento) 

27-28 California State Assn. of Counties Legislative 
Conference (Sacramento) 

JUNE 

26 CALAFCO Legislative Committee 
(Conference call) 

JULY 

24 CALAFCO Legislative Committee 
(Conference call) 

31 CALAFCO Board of Directors Meeting 
(San Diego) 

AUGUST 

19-21 California Association of Sanitation 
Agencies Annual Conference (San Diego) 

SEPTEMBER 

2-4 CALAFCO Annual Conference 
(Sacramento) 

4 CALAFCO Board of Directors Meeting 
(Sacramento) 

21-24 California Special Districts Assn. Annual 
Conference (Monterey) 

23-25 Regional Council of Rural Counties 
Annual Conference (South Lake Tahoe) 

30 League of California Cities Annual 
Conference (San Jose) 

OCTOBER 

1-2 League of California Cities Annual 
Conference (San Jose) 

NOVEMBER 

6 CALAFCO Board of Directors Meeting 
(Sacramento) 

13 CALAFCO Legislative Committee (2016) 
(Conference call) 

DECEMBER 

1-4 California State Assn. of Counties Annual 
Conference (Monterey) 

1-4 Association of California Water Agencies 
Conference (Indian Wells) 

11 CALAFCO Legislative Committee (2016) 
(Sacramento) 

THE CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION OF LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSIONS 

For current information and other CALAFCO resources please visit www.calafco.org 
Updated October 28, 2014 

 
California Association of  

Local Agency Formation 
Commissions 

1215 K Street, Suite 1650 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

916-442-6536 

Sharing Information and Resources 

ATTACHMENT 3



Journal of the 
California Association of Local 

Agency Formation Commissions 

October 2014 August 2013 

 
 

CALAFCO Welcomes Tehama LAFCo 
to the Association 
By Pamela Miller, CALAFCO Executive Director 

 
 
 

The Association is proud to 
welcome Tehama LAFCo into the 
CALAFCO family. Located in the 
middle of the northern region, 
Tehama County’s population of 
approximately 63,000 enjoy just 
under 3,000 square miles of very 
diverse land. The Sacramento River 
cuts through the central portion of 
the county and is one of the largest 
salmon spawning rivers in the 
world. With more than 300 miles of 
trails (including 17 miles of the 
Pacific Crest Trail) and Lassen 
Volcanic National Park only forty-
five miles to the east, Tehama 
County offers unlimited 
recreational opportunities. There 
are three incorporated cities 
(Tehama, Corning and Red Bluff), 
all of which are represented on the 
LAFCo Commission.  

During my visit with Commission 
Chair Clay Parker (and Council-
member for Red Bluff) and 
Executive Officer (EO) Sean 
Moore, AICP, I had the 
opportunity to drive through Red 
Bluff’s quaint downtown area. 
Aside from the “at-home” feeling I 
got, what impressed me the most 
was there were few vacancies in the 
stores and buildings lining 
downtown’s main street. I felt like I 
had taken a step back in time. 

 
 
 
 

Having taken on the responsibility 
of chairing the Commission as a 
brand new Commissioner, Clay is 
now well into his second term as 
Chair. He enjoys the LAFCo 
work. “I want to make sure that 
our decisions don’t adversely 
affect any of our special districts, 
so we work hard to make sure 
that nothing falls through the 
cracks.” 

As the County’s Planning 
Director, Sean in no newcomer to 
ag land preservation, which is an 
experience that benefits him in his 
role as EO. He says there are 
strong policies in place to help 
guide the LAFCo when dealing 
with significant issues such as 
water and future growth. When 
considering any future growth, 
Sean says, “We make sure we’ve 
fully planned ahead, and  

Continued on page 10

 The Sphere

ANNUAL 
CONFERENCE 

EDITION 

2014 Report to the 
Membership 

Associate Members’ 
Corner  

Legal Perspectives 

Message from the Chair: 
CALAFCO        

Looking to the Future 

 The Sphere 1 

ATTACHMENT 4



 
 
 

October 2014 

The Sphere is a publication of the 
California Association of Local Agency 
Formation Commissions. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Mary Jane Griego, Chair 
John Leopold, Vice Chair 

Stephen Tomanelli, Secretary 
Gay Jones, Treasurer 

Juliet Allen 
Robert Bergman 
James Curatalo 
Larry R. Duncan 
Juliana Inman 
Michael Kelley 

Dr. William Kirby 
Michael McGill 

Eugene Montanez 
Ted Novelli 

Joshua Susman 
Roger Welt, PhD 

CALAFCO Staff 
Pamela Miller, Executive Director 
Marjorie Blom, Executive Officer 
Steve Lucas, Deputy Exec. Officer 
Sam Martinez, Deputy Exec. Officer 
David Church, Deputy Exec. Officer 

Clark Alsop, Legal Counsel 
Jeni Tickler, Executive Assistant 

To submit articles, event announcements, 
comments or other materials noteworthy to LAFCo 
commissioners and staff, please contact the Editor 
at 916-442-6536 or info@calafco.org. 

The contents of this newsletter do not 
necessarily represent the views of CALAFCO, its 
members, or their professional or official affiliations. 

1215 K Street, Suite 1650 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

916-442-6536 

www.calafco.org 

The Sphere 
CALAFCO Journal 

FROM THE CHAIR OF 

CALAFCO  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Take a look at the intensity of issues 
currently facing our state – the 
lagging economy, scarce resources 
and a prolonged drought – and the 
vital mission of CALAFCO 
becomes increasingly clear. Suffice it 
to say that the foundational work we 
accomplished over the past 50 years 
was crucial but not nearly as 
important as the work we will do 
together over the next half a century. 
So the lessons learned in the past 
will be useful in molding our 
approach to the services we provide. 

It has been especially great to work 
with Pamela Miller and glean from 
her a better understanding of our 
potential as an organization to assist 
the 58 counties we represent. She 
played a huge role in expanding 
our influence in the halls of the 
Capitol, as demonstrated by 
CALAFCO’s deep involvement 
in such landmark issues as the 
recent groundwater legislation, 
which will benefit California for 
decades to come. 

Many of our past efforts will 
likely be seen as good practice 
for the tasks that lie ahead of us, 
since we can expect to confront 
some of the same issues over the 
coming years.  It will again be 
prudent to work diligently with each 
standing administration to 
encourage a focus on steadfast fiscal 
responsibility and management of 
budgets that result in strong and 
secure reserves. On the flipside, we 
will need to demonstrate a 
willingness to prioritize our “wants” 
and take the lead in making tough 
decisions that preserve the state’s 
safety net. 

So, in the same way we devoted 
last year to reflect upon the 
previous 50 years of CALAFCO 
accomplishments, it’s now time 
to shift our gaze to the future and 
make sure we continue to be an 
ongoing and reliable influence 
on the way California is 
governed. We have positioned 
our organization as the 
information hub for California 
counties, and that makes us a 
valuable resource to those who 
form statewide policy. We need 

to step up our 
efforts to be central 
to each
conversation that 
has a pivotal 
impact on our 
counties and make 
certain we are 
there to offer up 
solutions.  

Even as we move 
forward to take on 

these tasks, I want to pause long 
enough to express my gratitude 
for this opportunity to serve as 
your chair. Given the quality of 
CALAFCO’s staff and the 
dedication of its board, I have no 
doubt we will accomplish great 
things together. 

Thank you, 

Mary Jane Griego 

Mary Jane Griego 
Chair of the Board 

CALAFCO 

 

It’s now time to 
shift our gaze to 
the future and 
make sure we 
continue to be 

an ongoing 
and reliable 

influence on the 
way California 

is governed. 

The Sphere 
2 

ATTACHMENT 4



Weaving the CALAFCO Blanket 
with the Threads of Diversity 

I continue to be in awe of the diversity of our state 
and all of us who live here. The traces of what a 
melting pot California is are everywhere and 
undeniable.  

One of my goals as the Association’s Executive 
Director is to become and stay connected with all of 
you, our membership. In doing that, I gain a clearer 
perspective of the challenges faced in your respective 
areas and by your LAFCos, and also to better 
understand how those challenges are being 
successfully met.  

During my first two years, I’ve been fortunate to visit 
nine LAFCos throughout all four regions, attend the 
Bay Area Executive Officers’ meeting and the 
southern Region meeting, and talk with a number of 
our Associate Members. What I see and hear at each 
of these LAFCo meetings is truly representative of 
the diversity I’m talking about. The commissioners 
and staff, the people who attend the meetings, the 
Associate Members who provide services to 
LAFCos, and the issues that each LAFCo deals with 
are unique in their own right, yet connected by the 
thread of the collective mission of LAFCo and the 
desire to somehow improve on what is already a 
pretty good thing –this sometimes wacky and always 
wonderful state of ours.  

Being that melting pot brings its own set of 
challenges and problems, many of which are dealt 
with by LAFCos. Albert Einstein said we cannot 
solve our problems with the same level of thinking 
we used when we created them. To solve the issues 
of today, we can no longer think our way out the 
same way we thought our way into them.  

As we gather in Ontario this year, our conference 
focuses on shaping communities for tomorrow with 
innovative ideas today. We face many challenges 
today in our state – balancing growth with 
preservation of open space and ag lands; effectively 
managing our resources including water; providing 
for low resource communities; creating inclusion for 
all. Clearly today’s issues are more complex than the 
ones faced in the last  

50 years. All the more reason that we must raise 
our level of thinking for the next 50 years. There 
is no better way to approach the diverse nature of 
our challenges than with a more diverse level of 
thinking. What we need is diversity of thought to 
face the new challenges. Think about it…the most 
sustainable solutions come from a composition of 
diverse perspectives and viewpoints. Often times 
when there are disagreements on a particular issue 
and robust discussions occur, the results are 
creative and innovative solutions – because 
diversity is a valuable source of innovation and 
creativity.  

This is true if we are open to the 
possibilities and opportunities 
that can come from this way of 
thinking. You’ve no doubt 
heard the saying, “Think 
outside the box.” I challenge 
you to ask yourself, “What box? 
Where is the box?”  

The reality is there is no box there. The box is 
something we have created for ourselves in the 
patterns of our own thinking. This is what Einstein 
is talking about – imagine the innovative and 
creative solutions that can come from totally 
unconstrained and diverse thinking – untethered 
by self-imposed constraints of possibilities. 

It is that kind of thinking that will generate the 
solutions for today’s problems in creating the kind 
of communities for tomorrow that we all want. 
Solutions that will sustainable and systemic, 
diverse and inclusive.   

I look forward to growing CALAFCO into an 
even stronger Association, for CALAFCO to be 
more of an instrument to facilitate the sharing of 
today’s realities and the ideas and solutions for 
tomorrow.  I look forward to visiting more 
LAFCos and Associate Members in the coming 
year and beyond. So remember to leave the light 
on for me. 

Pamela Miller 

A Message from the 
CALAFCO 

Executive Director 

 The Sphere 3 

ATTACHMENT 4

http://www.brainyquote.com/quotes/quotes/t/timberners179893.html
http://www.brainyquote.com/quotes/quotes/t/timberners179893.html
http://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&frm=1&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&docid=pBLOS3O_oqa6QM&tbnid=irmi_eSq5VYouM:&ved=0CAcQjRw&url=http://blog.brazencareerist.com/2014/08/28/email-tips-want-response-never-start-message-like/&ei=h882VLOvL4ewogTOq4KoDA&bvm=bv.76943099,d.cGU&psig=AFQjCNGPyGubttrDeq-bhauSaxRzO8HHQw&ust=1412964525648955�


California Voting Rights Act 
Applies to Charter Cities, Allows 
Injunctions for Elections 
By Ryan Thomas Dunn  

The Los Angeles Court of Appeal recently upheld a 
preliminary injunction under the California Voting 
Rights Act (“CVRA”) against the charter City of 
Palmdale requiring an end to at-large elections for 
City Council to improve the electoral chances of 
minority candidates. In doing so, the court held 
charter cities were subject to the CVRA and even 
allowed a court to enjoin a regularly scheduled 
election in enforcing the act. Ironically, the election 
result to be enjoined produced the City’s first 
African-American Councilmember. 

The plaintiffs in Jauregui v. City of Palmdale 
alleged the city’s at-large elections diluted 
votes of Latino and African-American 
residents in violation of the CVRA. Plaintiffs 
presented statistical evidence from expert 
witnesses and evidence only one Latino and 
no African-Americans had served on the 
Council in a city which is 54% Latino and 
almost 15% African-American. The trial court 
found a violation of Elections Code section 14027, 
which prohibits at-large elections which result in the 
“dilution or abridgment of the rights of voters who 
are members of a protected class,” here Latinos and 
African-Americans. The city did not challenge on 
appeal the factual findings of vote dilution. 

Before a hearing on remedy, the plaintiffs sought to 
enjoin the city from conducting the November 2013 
election on an at-large basis. The trial court granted 
the injunction, in part, which the Court of Appeal 
construed to enjoin only certification of election 
results rather than conducted the election. Palmdale 
held its election and the Court of Appeal then heard 
its appeal. 

The city asserted two points on appeal: (1) the 
CVRA does not apply to charter cities; and (2) 
statute prohibits injunctions that prevent public 
officials from fulfilling ministerial duties, such as 
conducting elections. 

In rejecting Palmdale’s contentions, the court 
considered whether the city’s charter provisions 
could contradict a state statute in this instance. The 
Court of Appeal agreed with the city that its 
charter’s at-large provision addressed a municipal 
affair, but found an actual conflict between the  

CVRA and the charter provision because that 
charter provision, as it applied to Palmdale, 
impaired the ability of a protected class to select 
candidates of its choice and thus amounted to 
illegal vote dilution. The court also held that, the 
CVRA addressed a matter of statewide concern 
because preventing vote dilution in any city “goes 
to the legitimacy of the electoral process.” The 
CVRA is also narrowly tailored, the court held, 
because it “can necessarily only interfere with 
municipal governance when vote dilution is 
present.” 

The court also rejected Palmdale’s argument from 
state law prohibiting injunctions against 
performance of official duties, holding the CVRA 
provision allowing courts to “implement 

appropriate remedies” to allow the 
injunction against the City’s certification 
of the results of the at-large election of 
November 2013. 

The City has sought review in the 
California Supreme Court. If the 
Supreme Court does not take the case, 

Jauregui will stand as strong precedent that charter 
cities are bound by the CVRA and that trial courts 
have wide discretion to prevent at-large voting 
when there is evidence of vote dilution, which in 
effect could prohibit at-large voting in cities with 
significant minority populations. It is notable that 
Palmdale did not challenge the finding of vote 
dilution on appeal, and the Jauregui court made no 
ruling on that point.  

Plaintiffs’ lawyers are bringing cases under the 
CVRA against cities, school districts and other 
local governments around the State with 
significant minority populations to bring an end to 
at-large elections. Cities with diverse electorates 
which rely on at-large elections may wish to 
consult legal counsel about the requirements of the 
CVRA. 

Ryan Thomas Dunn is an attorney for the law firm 
Colantuono, Highsmith & Whatley. For more 
information on this topic, contact Ryan at 213/542-5717 
or rdunn@chwlaw.us. 

 

 

 

The Sphere 
4 

ATTACHMENT 4



The Smoke Has Cleared: How 
San Bernardino LAFCo 
Established Fire Protection 
Service to Baldwin Lake 
By San Bernardino LAFCo 

According to the California Department of Forestry 
and Fire Protection, there have been nearly 1,000 
fires this year alone. While California and its 
firefighters face a perfect storm of hot temperatures 
and low precipitation, LAFCOs statewide are also 
facing heated discussions 
about fire protection. 
Recently, San Bernardino 
LAFCO (“SB LAFCO”) 
successfully processed the 
annexation of the Baldwin 
Lake community to the 
Big Bear City Community 
Services District (“BBC 
CSD”). Needless to say 
this proposal was not a 
simple annexation. It was 
a complex reorganization 
resulting from multiple 
“sparks” throughout the 
years.  The focus on fire 
service in the San 
Bernardino Mountain 
Region smoldered for over 
20 years until the summer of 2014. 

Background 
The San Bernardino Mountain Region consists of 
several communities including the City of Big Bear 
Lake and the unincorporated communities 
commonly known as Big Bear City, Baldwin Lake, 
Erwin Lake, Lake Williams, Fawnskin, Sugarloaf 
and Moonridge. The overall territory encompasses 
approximately 65 square miles and within that area 
five (yes, five) service providers deliver fire service – 
three special districts, Cal Fire and the U.S. Forest 
Service.  

Since the early 90s, our Commission has conducted 
meetings and negotiations with the local fire 
agencies: County Fire, Big Bear Lake Fire 
Protection, a subsidiary district of the City of Big 
Bear Lake, and the Big Bear City Community 
Services District (“BBC CSD”).  

Throughout these discussions our staff emphasized 
the position of State law and SB LAFCO that 
efforts for change should revolve around 
simplifying the delivery of fire protection and 
emergency medical response by moving toward a 
single fire service provider. It has been a long -- 
some might even say rigorous -- journey but small 
victories have been achieved. The 2011 service 
review of the San Bernardino Mountain Region 
really put the spotlight on the benefits of a single, 
regional service provider for these communities. 
One of the most recent triumphs as a result of the  

service review was the creation of the Big Bear Fire 
Authority (a Joint Powers Authority composed of 
the Big Bear Lake Fire Protection District and 
BBC CSD). The 2012 collaborative effort phased 
in historical feats including the shared use of a fire 
chief and administrative staff and blending of 
operations and resources.  Yet, with these meetings 
hitting a dry-spell as of late, a new fire burst onto 
the scene in the shape of an application to form a 
new independent fire district. 

Small Mountain Community 
Baldwin Lake is a small yet dense mountain 
community with approximately 2,000 residents. 
Even though Baldwin Lake was within the service 
boundary of County Fire, residents wanted to have 
local control and eventually formed their own non-
profit volunteer fire department in 2007. Similar to 
other local organizations around the state, the 
economy impacted the small community. The 
Baldwin Lake Volunteer Fire Department 

 The Sphere 5 

ATTACHMENT 4



continued to face depleting revenues - only to be 
subsidized by a handful of resourceful residents. 
However, as the financial drought became more 
prominent and resources dwindled, the volunteer 
department feared possible reduction in service 
delivery. The community sought a sustainable 
government structure, and independence was at the 
top of the list. In April 2013, six years after the 
department was initially formed, members of the 
Baldwin Lake community submitted an application 
to SB LAFCO to reorganize the delivery of fire 
protection and emergency medical response within 
their community by registered voter petition. The 
original proposal envisioned the creation of a new 
independent fire protection district for the Baldwin 
Lake community with an independently-elected 
board of directors to take over responsibility for the 
volunteer fire department.  More importantly, the 
reorganization would include detachment from 
County Fire with a transfer of property taxes and 
the imposition of a special tax to provide for a 
consistent revenue stream (i.e. property taxes).  

After reviewing the specific formation guidelines 
adopted by the Commission and discussing staff’s 
recommendations, the Commission modified the 
proposal to consider annexation to the Big Bear 
City CSD first and determined that if the 
annexation to the BBC CSD and its related changes 
were terminated due to protest, that the 
Commission would authorize the waiver of the one 
year filing restriction on a substantially similar 
proposal (i.e. formation of a new district). 

LAFCO Outreach & Community Input 
The Commission’s approval to modify the proposal 
also directed staff to conduct a community meeting 
and request resident feedback through mailed 
surveys. Over 60 residents attended the workshop 
and approximately 50 survey responses were sent 
back to SB LAFCO. The circulated survey had two 
simple questions: (1) Which option would you 
prefer (a) Annexation to the Big Bear City CSD 
with a cost of approximately $120 per developed 
parcel; (b) Formation of the Baldwin Lake Fire 
Protection District with an estimated cost of $180 
per developed parcel or (c) Status quo under County 
Fire; and (2) Would you support the creation of a 
single fire provider within the mountain region – 
yes or no. In the end, the position taken in response 
to Question #1 did not provide a clear direction on 
the question of annexation; however, the support 
for a single fire provider for the area was 

overwhelming with 65% responses in favor of a 
single fire provider. Historically the 
communities, most notably Baldwin Lake, 
opposed inclusion within the BBC CSD.  

Final Outcome 
The Commission now possessed all the 
information available to make a sound decision. 
Following the June 2014 hearing, the Commission 
approved the annexation of the Baldwin Lake 
community to the BBC CSD. As we all know in 
the LAFCO world, the fun was not over yet. Staff 
did not receive any new information during the 30-
day request for reconsideration but did receive 
several petitions during the protest period. To the 
surprise of several status quo proponents and some 
annexation supporters, only 2.19% of landowners 
(totaling 1.30% land value) and 1% of registered 
voters opposed the reorganization: the decision 
was final. After the smoke cleared, the residents of 
Baldwin Lake got what they wanted and were now 
part of a sustainable government entity.  

So why is this important? The potential formation of 
another fire district would add only another 
provider to an already complex situation. 
Additionally, the residents within the mountain 
area historically viewed themselves as individual 
communities and scoffed at merging any sort of 
service or entity. Yet, for the first time these 
residents voiced consensus for proper service 
delivery. In hindsight as communities mature and 
learn from past experiences, so do we as LAFCOs. 
While the Commission and staff suit up to battle 
the next fire, we see this reorganization as a long-
awaited success story.  

Today the skies are clear. 

The Sphere 
6 

ATTACHMENT 4

http://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http%3A%2F%2Ftrischucrosswise.files.wordpress.com%2F2012%2F11%2Fbright_sun_with_clouds.jpg&imgrefurl=http%3A%2F%2Fimgarcade.com%2F1%2Fclear-sky-with-sun%2F&h=425&w=640&tbnid=YKYLL6n1UwaQeM%3A&zoom=1&docid=yeq5VhG5v3TfcM&ei=koI1VKj3E8ywogTkt4HwCQ&tbm=isch&ved=0CH0QMyhDMEM&iact=rc&uact=3&dur=539&page=4&start=50&ndsp=21�


An Inconvenient Truth: What 
CEQA Requires, and Many 
LAFCo’s Ignore, in Preparing 
SOI Updates
Author: P. Scott Browne 

Former Vice President Al Gore chose to title his 
award-winning documentary on global climate 
change “An Inconvenient Truth.”  This title was 
chosen to reflect his perception that, while the fact 
of global climate change was clearly established by 
science, many, particularly in the political field, 
chose to deny or ignore it because it would require 
unpopular or expensive remedies.  The film 
proceeds to depict the dire consequences if we 
continue to deny or ignore the problem of excess 
CO2 production.  

We, in the small world of LAFCo land, have our 
own “inconvenient truth.”  Though not as 
cataclysmic as global climate change, it nevertheless 
is an important issue that is, at least in my 
experience, being frequently ignored or denied 
because it would require burdensome expense and 
staff time, not to mention political will to do the 
right thing when something less would pass.  That 
truth is that, in many instances, when LAFCo acts 
as lead agency and adopts a sphere of influence 
update, it should be preparing an environmental 
impact report (EIR) or supplemental environmental 
impact report (SEIR). As I will discuss below, I 
believe that is what the CEQA statute, CEQA 
guidelines, and case law frequently require.  Yet I 
see very few EIRs being prepared in connection 
with sphere updates.  The avoidance of EIRs 
persists because LAFCo sphere CEQA decisions are 
seldom challenged.  Nevertheless, staff and 
commissioners should be aware that the practice 
puts your LAFCo at significant risk of losing if its 
sphere decision is challenged under CEQA in court.  

Very few staff and even fewer Commissioners like 
preparing environmental documents, much less 
environmental impact reports.  We at LAFCo are 
usually sheltered from the CEQA process by our 
limited role as a responsible agency of reviewing the 
environmental document prepared by the lead 
agency.  We are therefore less familiar with the 
process of actually creating such documents and 
hesitant to embark on the major task that preparing  

an EIR may entail. EIRs are expensive, take 
significant staff time, delay completion of the 
project, and are frequently perceived as having 
limited or no impact on the final action. Therefore, 
quite understandably, the resistance to preparing 
such documents is high.   

Unfortunately, the Cortese Knox Hertzberg Act 
(CKH) imposes the responsibility for preparation of 
sphere updates primarily on LAFCo.  Because it is 
LAFCo’s project, LAFCo by law is normally the 
lead agency for the update under CEQA.1    So 
unless a LAFCo can persuade the affected agency 
to assume that burden, it falls on LAFCo to comply 
with CEQA when preparing the update. 

When faced with the task of acting as a lead agency 
on an SOI, the tendency is to take the simplest 
possible route.  This usually means attempting to 
get by with a categorical exemption or negative 
declaration.  I have heard a number of common 
justifications for this approach:  1) a sphere is just 
drawing lines on paper—how can that create 
significant environmental impacts? 2) the 
environmental impacts of any actual development 
will be reviewed under CEQA when the project 
moves forward so we don’t have to consider those 
impacts at this stage; 3) the sphere is hardly changed 
from the old sphere so we only have to look at the 
minimal impacts produced by the minor change in 

1 I certainly have seen LAFCo’s shift the responsibility for 
initial drafting of the SOI and CEQA document back on to 
the cities and occasionally other agencies.  §56425(b) 
specifically discusses city applications for sphere updates. 
As long as the proper formalities of an actual application 
by the City are followed, then LAFCo may be able to 
properly limit its CEQA role to acting as a responsible 
agency for a City SOI update.  However there is no similar 
authority for special districts.  The only legal authority in 
CKH for district involvement is through a formal 
application for a “sphere amendment” pursuant to §56428. 
Even if that procedure were legally viewed as including a 
sphere update, few districts are willing to shoulder the 
burden of preparing their sphere update by initiating it as a 
sphere amendment.   

 The Sphere 7 

ATTACHMENT 4



the sphere line or 4) the impacts have all been 
addressed in the County/City’s general plan and 
EIR and we can just refer to those documents in our 
negative declaration. 

However inconvenient, the truth is that none of 
these justifications is, in my humble opinion, 
supported by the present state of CEQA law for 
most sphere decisions.  If the LAFCo action is 
challenged, it would be likely be overturned. 

Looking at the first justification, yes, in a literal 
sense, a sphere is a line drawn on a map and 
involves no direct physical change to the 
environment.  However, the courts have long since 
dismissed this simplistic argument.  As the 
California Supreme Court noted in the landmark 
case of Bozung v LAFCo, (1975) 13 Cal.3d 263, such 
“government paper shuffling” can have significant 
consequences in the real world.  Whether a farm is 
included in a city or sewer district sphere can make 
the difference between its eventual conversion to 
McMansions or its preservation for agricultural 
production.  See the Bozung v. LAFCo case and City 
of Livermore v. LAFCo (1986) 184 Cal.App.3d 53. 
About the only situation where this argument 
almost always makes some sense is spheres for 
cemetery districts. 

The second argument - that CEQA review can be 
minimal at the SOI stage because any development 
contemplated in the sphere will be subject to later 
environmental review - has also been rejected by the 
courts.  The California Supreme Court in Bozung 
noted that CEQA requires that “at every level of 
government” decision makers take into account the 
effects on the environment of their decisions. 
Consequently the courts and CEQA guidelines 
make it clear that such later CEQA review cannot 
be used to avoid consideration of the broader 
impacts at the policy decision embodied in the 
sphere. This same argument was made with respect 
to general plan adoption and was strongly rejected 
by the courts. (Christward Ministry v. Superior Court 
(1986), 184 Cal.App.3d at page 194; see also Rio 
Vista Farm Bureau Center v. County of Solano (1992) 5 
Cal.App.4th 351, 370-371)  

The third justification for avoiding an EIR is to 
assume that the baseline for environmental 
evaluation is the existing sphere or general plan 

land-use designations.  Then the only impacts that 
need to be considered are those aspects of the new  
sphere that constitute changes from the old sphere 
or that alter development contemplated by the 
general plan.  This is frequently the scenario under 
the SOI "affirmation" approach.  

The problem with this approach is that it also is 
inconsistent with the requirements of CEQA.  The 
required baseline established in the CEQA 
guidelines §15152 is “the physical environmental 
conditions in the vicinity of the project, as they 
exist at the time the notice of preparation for the 
project is published…”  The courts have made it 
very clear that it is not differences between 
planning documents that are to be evaluated in the 
environmental review.  It is the difference between 
the future development permitted by the new or 
"affirmed" SOI plan with what is currently on the 
ground. (Environmental Planning & Information 
Council (EPIC) v. County of El Dorado (1982) 131 
Cal.App.3d 350, 358)   Even where land has been 
designated for urban development for many years 
and is a part of an existing SOI, if it is still 
undeveloped and the sphere plan will facilitate its 
development, then the environmental analysis for 
the SOI update must consider the impacts of that 
development.  This means that an EIR is almost 
certainly required where any significant 
undeveloped land is included in the sphere for 
cities and for other agencies that are providers of 
services such as sewer or potable water that are 
critical for development. 

The final refuge from the dreaded EIR is 
commonly to rely upon or incorporate the 
applicable city or county general plan EIR into a 
negative declaration for the sphere environmental 
analysis.  That general plan EIR can presumably 
take care of all of the indirect growth-inducing 
impacts facilitated by the service expansion 
proposed in the sphere since the impacts of that 
growth were already addressed by the county or 
city in the EIR.  LAFCo can then simply adopt the 
negative declaration with that incorporation and 
move on. 

This can work in some limited circumstances 
where the EIR being relied upon is reasonably 
current and finds that there are no unavoidable 
significant impacts remaining after mitigation. 
Such a finding is rare in EIRs for general plans. 

The Sphere 8 

ATTACHMENT 4



Almost every general plan EIR that I have 
encountered makes a finding that certain impacts - 
even after mitigation - such as farmland 
conversion, impact on air quality, impact on 
wildlife or traffic, are significant and unavoidable. 
The agency is then required to make an overriding 
finding under PRC§21083 and 15093 of the 
CEQA Guidelines.  These regulations require a 
finding of social or economic considerations that 
justify approval of the project notwithstanding the 
significant unavoidable impacts that will result.  

If a LAFCo wants to rely upon an EIR that does 
identify significant and unavoidable 
environmental impacts from the planned growth, 
both case law and the statute make clear that 
such reliance can only be done in the context of 
another EIR or Supplemental EIR (SEIR), if the 
subsequent project will contribute to those 
unavoidable significant impacts.  This is because 
it is only through the EIR process that the 
LAFCo can make overriding findings to address 
the unavoidable significant impacts identified in 
the EIR being relied upon. As the Court of 
Appeal said in Communities for a Better 
Environment v. Resources Agency (2003) 103 
Cal.App.4th 98  

“Even though a prior EIR's analysis of environmental 
effects may be subject to being incorporated in a later 
EIR for a later, more specific project, the responsible 
public officials must still go on the record and explain 
specifically why they are approving the later project 
despite its significant unavoidable impacts.” (id at pg 
124-125)   

See also 
PRC 
Section 
21094 
which 
authorizes 
tiering off 
EIRs and 
specifically 
Subdivision 
(a)(2) which 

was amended in 2010 to allow agencies to 
incorporate the overriding findings from a prior 
EIR in a subsequent tiered EIR or “focused EIR.” 
This does not allow use of a negative declaration 
as the base for such findings. See also Guideline 

sections 15175 to 15179.5 which authorize tiering 
off a Master EIR but only allow use of a negative 
declaration where all impacts can be mitigated 
below the level of significance and the Master EIR 
is less than 5 years old.  

The good news is that the supplemental EIRs 
(SEIRs) or focused EIRs required for such SOIs are 
often much simpler than the massive general plan 
EIRs that they rely upon.  For most impacts, the 
SEIR or Focused EIR can simply summarize the 
general plan EIR and repeat their conclusions. 
Issues arise when the SOI contains territory not 
covered by the general plan EIR. This may require 
referring to more than one general plan EIR or 
supplementing the analysis for the additional 
territory.  Here again, because of the relatively 
“high level” and broad nature of SOIs, the 
environmental impacts can be analyzed in a fairly 
broad fashion.   

Another issue arises when the general plan EIR 
being relied upon was done before greenhouse gas 
emissions (“GHG”) were required to be analyzed. 
CEQA Guidelines §15064.4 setting forth the 
required GHG analysis under CEQA was adopted 
in 2009, effective in 2010.  If the EIR being relied 
upon was prepared without that analysis, LAFCo 
would be required to do a GHG analysis of the 
growth facilitated by the extension of services 
proposed in the SOI as part of the SEIR.   

Notwithstanding these complications, case law and 
current CEQA guidelines all point to the need to 
do an EIR or SEIR for most spheres of influence 
that propose extension of public services to 
undeveloped areas that will facilitate or induce 
urban development.  We ignore this inconvenient 
truth at our peril.  

Scott Browne is the Principal of the Law Offices of P. 
Scott Browne. He is also legal counsel to a number of 
LAFCos including Butte, Colusa, Lake, Nevada, Plumas  
and Solano. He can be reached at scott@scottbrowne.com 
or 530-272-4250. 

  The Sphere 9 

ATTACHMENT 4



Welcome Tehama LAFCo 
Continued from cover 

everything is in place to effectively and efficiently 
handle that growth.”  

When asked about the LAFCo’s challenges, 
Tehama LAFCo is not unlike many others. They 
are focusing efforts in service reviews and trying 
to get a clear picture of the spheres and services of 
their many special districts. Tehama is a small 
LAFCo that sees few applications; Sean indicates 
that when they do get one, it is typically an 
unusual situation.  

Both Sean and Clay appreciate the resources 
available to them as an Association member, 
especially the EO list serve. For the first time, this 
year we will welcome Tehama to the Annual 
Conference as a full LAFCo Member and Voting 
Delegate; Tehama’s Vice Chair and County 
Supervisor Bob Williams will participate as a 
panelist in one of the breakout sessions.  

CALAFCO Associate Member 
Corner 
CALAFCO deeply appreciates our Associate 
Members and, beginning with this Edition, we 
will highlight several of our Associate Members in 
each Newsletter. 

This past year we welcomed several new 
Associate Members.  All of these members’ 
contact information is in the CALAFCO 
Directory as well as on the CALAFCO website. 

Gold Associate Member 
Project Resource Specialists 

We want to acknowedge 
Harry Ehrlich and Project 
Resource Specialists, which 
recently transitioned from a 
Silver to Gold Associate 
Member. Project Resource 
Specialists provides manage-
ment and legislative support to 
all levels of local government 
including Municipal Service Reviews, agency 
organization, and project mangement support. 

Silver Associate Members 
HdL Coren & Cone 

HdL Coren & Cone 
provides property tax 
services to cities, counties 
and special districts. 
They are very familiar 

with county property allocation systems and 
redevelopment (and its dissolution).  They have 
property tax data in 40 California counties going 
back as far as 25 years. 

Planwest Partners, Inc. 
Planwest Partners Inc. 
provides contract LAFCo staffing services to 
multiple LAFCos.  This includes preparing and 
conducting Municipal Service Reviews and SOI 
updates, public noticing, environmental 
documents, GIS, fiscal and economic studies, 
website management, application processing, 
facilitation and training. George Williamson is the 
Principal at Planwest Partners. 

Regional Government Services Authority (RGS) 

RGS’s model is a perfect 
fit for new city/district 
start up or LAFCo 
seeking alternative 
commission staffing.  
They are a JPA providing 

Interim & Long Term public agency professionals 
including: HR, Payroll or Finance. 

SWALE Inc. 

SWALE’s services include efficient 
analysis of boundaries and districts 
in MSRs; knowledgeable solutions 
to water resource issues; 
collaboration with Commissioners and elected 
officials; creative and inclusive methods of 
engaging the public; experienced problem solving 
for land-use issues; readable maps using GIS; and 
straightforward fiscal and economic studies; all 
powered by the SWALE Inc. Consulting Team. 

These summaries are written by the Associate Members themselves, not 
CALAFCO, and can be found in the Memebrship Directory Asscoiate 
Members seciont. 

The Sphere 10 

ATTACHMENT 4



 2014             REPORT TO THE MEMBERSHIP 

Dear CALAFCO Members: 

We are proud to report to you that the Association 
continues as a strong, vibrant educational resource to 
members and as an advocate for LAFCo and LAFCo 
principles to statewide decision makers.  In 2014 the 
Association maintained a high level of educational 
services as well as a healthy agenda of legislative issues. 
During the year we saw active involvement of LAFCos 
from around the state and had the pleasure of 
welcoming Tehama LAFCo into the Association! We 
remain proud of both the program quality and 
participation in the Staff Workshop and the CALAFCO 
U courses. San Bernardino LAFCo and the Annual 
Conference planning committee have done an 
outstanding job with the 2014 Conference.  Finally, the 
Association remains on solid financial ground. The 
2014/2015 adopted budget maintains member service 
levels and retains a healthy reserve.  

Our achievements continue to be the result of the 
dedicated efforts of the many volunteer LAFCo staff 
who contribute their time and expertise. The Board is 
grateful to the Commissions that support their staff as 
they serve in the CALAFCO educational and legislative 
roles on behalf of all LAFCos. We are also grateful to 
the Associate Members and event sponsors that help 
underwrite the educational mission of the Association 
and allow us to keep registration fees as low as possible 
to encourage more participation. 

EDUCATIONAL SERVICES AND 
COMMUNICATION 

CALAFCO educational and information sharing 
services are the Board’s top priority for member services. 
The Association focuses its resources in four areas: the 
Staff Workshop, Annual Conference, CALAFCO 
University courses, and electronic resources including 
the web site and the member list-serves.   

Staff Workshop and Annual Conference  

We continued the tradition of quality education 
programming with the Staff Workshop held in Berkeley 
in April and the Annual Conference in Ontario in 
October.  The Workshop, hosted by Alameda LAFCo 
with support from the Bay Area LAFCos, brought 
together 106 LAFCo staff from around the state for a 
three-day workshop at the DoubleTree by Hilton in the 
Berkeley Marina.  With 42 LAFCos and 6 associate 
member organizations represented, it was one of the 
higher workshop attendances. An exceptionally diverse 
program centered on the theme “Building Bridges to the 
Future: Collaboration and Cooperation.” This year’s 
program included a range of both technically-oriented  

topics and professional development 
topics, including collaborating and 
influencing others, creating and 
delivering more effective staff reports, two 
sessions on MSRs, and a look back as we 
walked with LAFCo “dinosaurs”.  Again this year a 
special series of sessions was specifically designed by 
and for clerks. The distinctive mobile workshop was a 
boat tour of the new span of the Bay Bridge with a very 
unique and close-up look at the new part of the bridge. 
The workshop closed with a unique legislative panel 
consisting of legislative representatives of our sister 
Associations: League of CA Cities, CSAC, and CSDA. 
We would like to thank Steve Lucas (Butte LAFCo) who 
chaired the Program Committee, Mona Palacios and 
Sandy Hou (Alameda LAFCo), and all who worked to 
make this an outstanding staff workshop. 

Over 200 LAFCo commissioners and staff are expected 
at the 2014 Conference in Ontario. Hosted by San 
Bernardino LAFCo, the program centers on the theme 

“LAFCo the Next 50 Years: Shaping 
Communities for Tomorrow With Innovative 
Ideas Today” and includes a range of 
sessions focused on sharing creative and 
innovative perspectives on facing the 
challenges of tomorrow. Sessions include 
a close look at water, in particular 

groundwater basins and new state legislation governing 
them, as well as policies and practices for water supply 
and analysis. Other sessions include using next 
generation technology, understanding the complex 
world of cyber security, looking closely at LAFCos’ 
relationships with JPAs and COGs, the protection of 
our mineral resources, hearing best practices on shared 
services and conducting SOIs, gaining skills in engaging 
the public in LAFCo actions, and better understanding 
how to create staff performance evaluation processes 
that create value. The conference will open with a “walk 
with dinosaurs” and close with a powerful legislative 
update that includes panelists from both the Assembly 
Local Government Committee (ALGC) and the Senate 
Governance and Finance Committee, along with a 
special appearance by Assemblymember Katcho 
Achadjian, Chair of the ALGC. 

For the first time this year, we opened up the LAFCo 
101 session for attendance at a deeply discounted rate to 
those who are not attending the full conference. This 
allows agencies to send staff and elected officials to this 
very special 2-hour session on understanding and 
applying the basics of LAFCo. 

  The Sphere 11 

ATTACHMENT 4



 2014             REPORT TO THE MEMBERSHIP 

We acknowledge and thank San Bernardino LAFCo for 
hosting the Conference, its Executive and Assistant 
Executive Officer for all of their hard work: Kathy 
Rollings-McDonald and Sam Martinez, the Conference 
Committee Chair James Curatalo (San Bernardino), and 
all who are working on the Program and Host 
Committees to make this an outstanding Conference. 

CALAFCO University 

This year there were four 
CALAFCO U courses scheduled. The courses allow 
staff, commissioners and other interested parties to 
explore in depth LAFCo processes, policies and actions. 
In February of this year the Association hosted a session 
in Ontario on Protest Provisions which was well attended. 
The session scheduled for June on LAFCo Best Practices 
and Greatest Hits was cancelled due to a low interest 
level. In August Sacramento was the spot for the next 
CALAFCO U on Ag Preservation, another very well 
attended session. The final session for 2014 is set for 
December 8 in Sacramento and will feature an 
impressive panel of LAFCo attorneys to guide us 
through the Legal Interpretations of CKH.  

The low enrollment of the June session prompted 
CALAFCO to survey the Executive Officers to better 
understand their educational needs and how we could 
better design educational offerings that generated the 
highest level of value. The results indicated that it would 
be better if CALAFCO offered fewer sessions and 
rotated the location of the offerings. The CALAFCO 
Board received the full report and concurred with staff’s 
recommendation to offer two CALAFCO U sessions 
per year and add additional offerings as the need arises. 

These courses are possible only with the volunteer 
efforts of LAFCo staff and Associate members. Thank 
you to all who contributed to the classes. A special 
thanks to David Church (San Luis Obispo LAFCo) who 
has been the lead in coordinating CALAFCO U this 
year. 

Accreditations  

CALAFCO’s educational activities have all been 
accredited by the American Planning Association to 
provide AICP credits for certified planners. This benefit 
is provided at no cost to LAFCo staff and helps them 
maintain their certifications. In addition, both the 
Conference and Workshop have sessions for LAFCo 
counsel that have been accredited for MCLE credits by 
the California Bar.  

 

Web Site  

The CALAFCO web site is a vital resource for both 
LAFCos and the community with questions about local 
government in California. The site consistently attracts 
between 5,500 and 6,500 visits per week. The vast 
majority of the visits are for the reference and resource 
materials found on the site and referral information to 
member LAFCos.  This was the second year of the new 
website, and we faced a number of challenges. It is a 
priority for the Association to ensure a secure and stable 
website and email exchange, and this will be a top 
priority for CALAFCO staff as we close out 2014. 

List-Serves  

The list-serves maintained by the Association continue 
to be an important communication and information 
sharing tool among LAFCo staff. In total, we maintain 
eight list serves to help members share information, 
materials, and expertise.  

Quarterly Updates 

After each Board meeting, the Association’s executive 
director creates and distributes through the list serves a 
quarterly report on the activities of the Board and 
Association. These quarterly reports will be enhanced in 
the coming year as fewer editions of The Sphere are 
created. These bulletins provide informational updates 
in a timelier manner and at less cost to the Association. 

LEGISLATIVE PROGRAM 

While CALAFCO sponsored only one bill, this year’s 
legislative session ended up to be a very busy one for 
CALAFCO. We were involved in the many stakeholder 
meetings on the groundwater legislation as well as 
responding to a number of gut and amend bills that 
impacted LAFCos. The CALAFCO Legislative 
Committee began work in November and met regularly 
throughout the year. The top priority of the Legislative 
Committee was AB 2762, the Assembly Local 
Government Committee 
Omnibus bill. This year 
the bill contained eight 
different changes to 
Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg 
such as clarifying several 
definitions, making 
changes to obsolete and 
incorrect code references, 
and making minor updates to several outdated sections. 
Perhaps the most substantial change was made to the 
independent special district selection committee process. 
CALAFCO worked closely with CSDA for several  

The Sphere 12 

ATTACHMENT 4



 2014             REPORT TO THE MEMBERSHIP 

months to ensure that these changes were acceptable to 
their membership. The bill was signed by the Governor 
on July 9. We are grateful for the efforts of Legislative 
Committee member Paul Novak (Los Angeles LAFCo) 
and Assembly Local Government Committee associate 
consultant Misa Yokoi-Shelton for their efforts on 
shepherding this bill. 

Highlights of other legislation on which we worked 
include: 

• AB 1527 (Perea) Substantially amended several
times, the bill required the State Water Resources
Control Board to provide incentives for the
consolidation of public water systems based on
LAFCo studies, and to adopt a policy handbook.
Eliminated from an earlier version of the bills was
the provision that LAFCos be added to the list of
eligible entities for receiving grant funding from the
Strategic Growth Council. However it still
acknowledged the importance and usefulness of
Municipal Service Reviews at the state level by
requiring the Board to use that data in their
processes of consolidation incentives. Ultimately the
bill was vetoed by the Governor because the new
provision would be repealed. As the bill was
amended numerous times, CALAFCO’s position
changed, ultimately ending in a Support.

• SB 614 (Wolk) This was a gut and amend initiated
by the League. The bill is intended to provide an
incentive to cities to annex disadvantaged
unincorporated communities by creating an option
for a funding mechanism using a property tax
sharing agreement by affected entities and ensuing
tax increment. The bill allows LAFCo to consider,
as part of the application, the formation of a new
district or the reorganization of an existing district,
but only if all of the affected agencies are in
agreement. Further, the bill allows a consenting
local agency to advance funds to the special district
for the sole purposes outlined in the annexation
development plan (for specific infrastructure
upgrades). There is a ten year sunset on the
provisions created by this bill. CALAFCO spent
over two months working closely with Senator
Wolk’s staff and the staff of the Senate Governance
& Finance committee on amendments to the bill.
All of CALAFCO’s concerns were eliminated and
ultimately CALAFCO’s position was one of
Support. The bill was signed into law on September
29.

 

• AB 1521 (Fox) This bill would have reinstated the
VLF payment (through ERAF) and changed the
way that the growth in the VLF adjustment amount
(property tax in lieu of VLF) is calculated starting in
FY 2014-15 to include the growth of assessed
valuation, including in an annexed area, from FY
2004-05 to FY 2014-15. Beginning in FY 2015-16,
the VLF adjustment amount would have been the
jurisdiction's annual change in the assessed
valuation. Marked as an urgency bill to take effect
immediately, the Governor vetoed the bill stating it
would not be prudent to authorize legislation that
would result in long term costs to the general fund
that this bill would occasion. CALAFCO Support.

• SB 69 (Roth) The bill called for reinstatement of the
VLF through ERAF for cities that incorporated
between January 1, 2004 and January 1, 2012. 
There were no provisions for back payments for lost 
revenue, but the bill did reinstate future payments 
beginning in the 2014/15 year for cities that 
incorporated between 1-1-2004 and 1-1-2012. The 
Governor also vetoed this bill for the same reasons 
as noted for AB 1521. CALAFCO Support. 

• AB 2156 (Achadjian) The bill writes Joint Power
Authorities into CKH through definition of both,
and as entities from which the LAFCo is authorized
to request information for studies, and requires the
JPA to respond to the request for information. The
bill was signed into law on June 4. CALAFCO
Support.

• AB 1739 (Dickinson) and SB 1168 (Pavley)
CALAFCO engaged in the months of stakeholder
meetings on these two pieces of legislation. With a
number of concerns about both bills early on, we
shared those concerns and were able to get them
written out of both bills. In early July the Board had
an opportunity to receive a presentation on these
landmark bills from Assm. Dickinson’s Legislative
Director Les Spahnn, ACWA Board member Matt
Hurley, and participating co-author of AB 1739
Ryan Bezzera. CALAFCO’s concerns were once
again heard. As a result of those amendments, our
concern was removed and no position was taken.
Both bills along with a third bill (SB 1319, Pavley)
were signed into law September 16.

For a complete list of CALAFCO bills, please visit the 
CALAFCO website. Information is updated daily. 

The Legislative Committee is currently working on 
several substantial legislative proposals approved by the 
Board that will likely be introduced in 2015: 

  The Sphere 13 

ATTACHMENT 4



• Protest Provisions, Phase II: Retaining the existing
protest and election statutes and adding new
streamlined provisions that can be followed based
upon local conditions and circumstances.  The goal
of this streamlining is to create a clearer, more
purposeful and transparent process when making
important electoral-related decisions.

• Strengthening the relationship between LAFCos and
JPAs: Building on this year’s AB 2156 (Achadjian),
JPAs would file their agreements with LAFCo and,
should the LAFCo desire, be included in MSR
studies.

• Disincorporations: The current law is antiquated and
in dire need of updating, so a working group from
the Legislative Committee was formed to look at
this issue.

FINANCIAL POLICIES AND REPORTING  

The Association continues to stand on a strong financial 
base. The Board maintains policies and current filings 
which are in compliance with all federal and state 
requirements for 501(c)(3) organizations. The 
CALAFCO Policy Manual, IRS Form 990 and other 
key Association documents are available on the 
CALAFCO web site. The Association also maintains its 
records with the national non-profit reporting 
organization, GuideStar (www.guidestar.com). In 2014 
CALAFCO once again earned the GuideStar Exchange 
Gold Seal in recognition of its transparency and 
completeness in documentation. 

All financial records are reviewed quarterly by an 
outside CPA with reports to the Treasurer and the 
Board. The Board also reviews the annual IRS Form 
990 tax filing prepared by the CPA and staff. 

2014-15 Budget 

The Board continues to manage the financial resources 
of the Association closely. This year LAFCo dues were 
increased by the CPI as authorized in the Association 
Bylaws. While only a 1.5% increase, the Board felt it 
was necessary to keep up with the increasing costs of 
operating the Association.    

The adopted budget for 2014-15 provides only minor 
changes from the 2013-14 budget. The close of the fiscal 
year showed a slightly greater year-end balance than 
anticipated in the adopted budget, allowing the 
Association to once again avoid the use of reserve. The 
approved budget is $368,273, which includes a $43,970 
contingency.    

The Board approved several small allowances for the 
use of contingency funds this fiscal year to include 

assistance in archiving 
old Association
records, purchasing 
new office equipment, 
and the aid of outside 
legal counsel. In total, 
the approved funds 
should not exceed 
$5,800 (or 15%) of the 
total being held in 
contingency.  

For fiscal year 2014-15, 
there are small 
increases in rent, 
professional services, 
and legislative services 
expenses in the budget 
which are offset by 
increases in revenues 
from dues and returns 
from the conference 
and CALAFCO U as 
well as a reduction in 
office and research 
expenses. The budget is 
balanced and does not 
tap any reserve funds.  

Restricted Fund Reserve  

Since 2005 an 
important goal
established by the Board has been to grow and maintain 
a fund reserve to support member services in uncertain 
economic times and to avoid the need to tap members 
for additional funds, as had been done in the past. With 
an initial goal of 35% of non-conference operating 
expenses, the reserve balance at the close of the 2013-14 
fiscal year was $150,754, about 62% of the annual 
operations budget outside of the Conference and 
Workshop. The reserve is not part of the annual budget 
and requires a vote of the Board to use its funds. The 
Association has not used the fund reserve since the early 
2000s. CALAFCO maintains its funds with the Local 
Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). While the interest 
rate has remained low again this year, we have not lost 
any of the principal in our savings or investments. This 
year the Board amended the organization’s policy 
regarding the reserve fund, changing from having a 
maximum of 25% held in reserves to having a minimum 
of 25% held in reserves. 

Finally we want to recognize the leadership of our 
executive director Pamela Miller and executive officer 
Marjorie Blom (Stanislaus LAFCo). Added to that is our 
appreciation for all the contributions of executive 

 2014     REPORT TO THE MEMBERSHIP 

The Sphere 14 

ATTACHMENT 4



assistant Jeni Tickler in the CALAFCO office, deputy 
executive officers Steve Lucas (Butte LAFCo), Sam 
Martinez (San Bernardino LAFCo), and David Church 
(San Luis Obispo LAFCo), Legal Counsel Clark Alsop 
(BB&K), and CPA Jim Gladfelter (Alta Mesa Group). 
These people, along with many other volunteers, 
associate members, and members of the Board have all 

worked together this year to bring many achievements 
and a strong Association to you, our Member LAFCos 
and Associate Members. 

Sincerely Yours, 

The CALAFCO Board of Directors 

 

 

 

 

 

2014 CALAFCO University  
LAFCo & the Law: Avoiding the Legal Pitfalls and Potholes of CKH 

December 8, 2014 
Sacramento, CA 

2015 STAFF WORKSHOP 2015 ANNUAL CONFERENCE 
April 15 – 17, 2015  September 2 – 4, 2015 
Holiday Inn Express and Courtyard Suites Hyatt Regency 
Grass Valley, CA Sacramento, CA 
Hosted by Nevada LAFCo  Hosted by Sacramento LAFCo 

On the Horizon 

  The Sphere 15 

ATTACHMENT 4



The Year In Pictures 
Scenes from CALAFCO Activities 

CALAFCO Annual Conference 2013 
Squaw Valley, CA 

 

LAFCO 50th Anniversary Symposium 
Sacramento, CA 

Co-sponsored by CALAFCO and the UC Davis Extension for Land Use & Natural Resources 

The Sphere 
CALAFCO Journal 

CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION OF LOCAL AGENCY 
FORMATION COMMISSIONS 
1215 K Street, Suite 1650 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

www.calafco.org 

Sharing Information and Resources 

CALAFCO provides educational, information sharing and technical support for its 
members by serving as a resource for, and collaborating with, the public, the legislative 
and executive branches of state government, and other organizations for the purpose 
of discouraging urban sprawl, preserving open-space and prime agricultural lands, and 
encouraging orderly growth and development of local agencies. 

CCAALLAAFFCCOO  GGOOLLDD  AASSSSOOCCIIAATTEE  MMEEMMBBEERRSS  
TThhaannkk  yyoouu  ffoorr  yyoouurr  ssuuppppoorrtt  

CALAFCO Annual Staff Workshop 2014 
Berkeley, CA 

The Sphere 16 

ATTACHMENT 4



  

CALAFCO LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE 
JPA WORK GROUP 

 
Volunteers 

Scott Browne, Counsel, Nevada  
Bill Kirby, Commissioner, Placer  

Steve Lucas, Executive Officer, Butte 
Keene Simonds, Executive Officer, Marin  

 
 

APPROVED DRAFT PROPOSAL FOR DISCUSSION  
August 26, 2014 

 

A.  Background 
 
On February 7, 2014, the CALAFCO Board accepted the earlier recommendation of the 
Legislative Committee to establish a work group tasked with drafting a legislative 
proposal for discussion establishing a formal relationship between LAFCOs and joint-
power authorities (JPAs).  The underlying intent is to reconcile the increasing and 
important role JPAs have in funding/organizing/delivering municipal services in 
support of urban growth in concert with LAFCOs’ mandate to produce accountable 
and efficient government.  The Board, accordingly, has tasked the JPA Work Group 
with drafting legislation consistent with this referenced intent for future review by the 
Legislative Committee and possible future action by the Board.   
 
B.  Discussion 
   
The JPA Work Group has approved the following draft proposal for discussion by the 
Legislative Committee and – if agreeable – subsequent consideration by the Board.  
The draft proposal ultimately involves making three changes as summarized below.  
 

• Expand and add a new requirement for JPAs to file copies of their agreements 
and amendments with LAFCOs in step with existing reporting to the Secretary 
of State (Government Code Sections 6503.6 and 6503.8) 
 

• Clarify existing law to allow LAFCOs to include JPAs in municipal service 
reviews for purposes of assessing the availability and adequacy of governmental 
services within a defined region if deemed appropriate by local commissions 
(Government Code Section 56430)   
 

• Clarify existing law to define JPAs as public agencies for purposes of eligible 
entities to contract for new/extended outside services and confirm applicability 
of exemptions are determined by LAFCOs.  (Government Code Section 56133). 
 

The draft amendment language itself follows.  
  

ATTACHMENT 5



2 | P a g e  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Left Blank for Photocopying Purposes 
 

  

ATTACHMENT 5



3 | P a g e  

 

1.  Amend the “Joint Exercise of Powers Act” to revise Section 6503.6 as well as add 
Section 6503.8 to include LAFCOs in existing JPA filing requirements.   

 
6503.  The agreements shall state the purpose of the agreement or the power to be 
exercised. They shall provide for the method by which the purpose will be accomplished 
or the manner in which the power will be exercised. 
 
6503.1.  (a) When property tax revenues of a county of the second class are allocated by 
that county to an agency formed for the purpose of providing fire protection pursuant to 
this chapter, those funds may only be appropriated for expenditure by that agency for 
fire protection purposes. 
(b) As used in this section, "fire protection purposes" means those purposes directly 
related to, and in furtherance of, providing fire prevention, fire suppression, emergency 
medical services, hazardous materials response, ambulance transport, disaster 
preparedness, rescue services, and related administrative costs. 
(c) This section shall not be interpreted to alter any provision of law governing the 
processes by which cities or counties select providers of ambulance transport services. 
  
6503.5.  Whenever a joint powers agreement provides for the creation of an agency or 
entity that is separate from the parties to the agreement and is responsible for the 
administration of the agreement, such agency or entity shall, within 30 days after the 
effective date of the agreement or amendment thereto, cause a notice of the agreement 
or amendment to be prepared and filed with the office of the Secretary of State. The 
agency or entity shall furnish an additional copy of the notice of the agreement or 
amendment to the Secretary of State, who shall forward the copy to the Controller. The 
notice shall contain: 
(a) The name of each public agency that is a party to the agreement. 
(b) The date that the agreement became effective. 
(c) A statement of the purpose of the agreement or the power to be exercised. 
(d) A description of the amendment or amendments made to the agreement, if any. 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter, any agency or entity administering 
a joint powers agreement or amendment to such an agreement, which agreement or 
amendment becomes effective on or after the effective date of this section, which fails to 
file the notice required by this section within 30 days after the effective date of the 
agreement or amendment, shall not thereafter, and until such filings are completed, 
issue any bonds or incur indebtedness of any kind. 
 
6503.6.  Whenever an agency or entity files a notice of agreement or amendment with 
the office of the Secretary of State pursuant to Section 6503.5, the agency or entity 
shall file a copy of the full text of the original joint powers agreement, and any 
amendments to the agreement, with the Controller, and within 90 days after the 
effective date of the agreement or amendment thereto, shall file a copy of the agreement 
or amendment with the local agency formation commissions in all all affected counties, 
as defined in Section 56012. 
6503.7.  Within 90 days after the effective date of this section, any separate agency or 
entity constituted pursuant to a joint powers agreement entered into prior to the 
effective date of this section and responsible for the administration of the agreement 
shall cause a notice of the agreement to be prepared and filed with the office of the 
Secretary of State. The agency or entity shall also furnish an additional copy of the 
notice of the agreement to the Secretary of State who shall forward the copy to the 
Controller. The notice shall contain all the information required for notice given 
pursuant to Section 6503.5.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter, any 
joint powers agency that is required and fails to file notice pursuant to this section 
within 90 days after the effective date of this section shall not, thereafter, and until 
such filings are completed, issue any bonds, incur any debts, liabilities or obligations of 
any kind, or in any other way exercise any of its powers. For purposes of recovering the 
costs incurred in filing and processing the notices required to be filed pursuant to this 

ATTACHMENT 5



4 | P a g e  

 

section and Section 6503.5, the Secretary of State may establish a schedule of fees. 
Such fees shall be collected by the office of the Secretary of State at the time the notices 
are filed and shall not exceed the reasonably anticipated cost to the Secretary of State of 
performing the work to which the fees relate. 
 
6503.8.  No later than July 1, 2016, any separate agency or entity constituted pursuant 
to a joint powers agreement entered into prior to the effective date of this section and 
responsible for the administration of the agreement shall cause a copy of the agreement 
to be filed with the local agency formation commissions in all affected counties, as 
defined in Section 56012.   

 

ATTACHMENT 5



5 | P a g e  

 

2.  Amend the “Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act” to revise Section 56430 to clarify LAFCOs 
ability to include JPAs in the MSR process 

 
56430.  (a) In order to prepare and to update spheres of influence in accordance with 
Section 56425, the commission shall conduct a service review of the municipal services 
provided in the county or other appropriate area designated by the commission. The 
commission shall include in the area designated for service review the county, the region, 
the subregion, or any other geographic area as is appropriate for an analysis of the service 
or services to be reviewed, and shall prepare a written statement of its determinations with 
respect to each of the following: 
   (1) Growth and population projections for the affected area. 
   (2) The location and characteristics of any disadvantaged unincorporated communities 
within or contiguous to the sphere of influence. 
   (3) Present and planned capacity of public facilities, adequacy of public services, and 
infrastructure needs or deficiencies including needs or deficiencies related to sewers, 
municipal and industrial water, and structural fire protection in any disadvantaged, 
unincorporated communities within or contiguous to the sphere of influence. 
   (4) Financial ability of agencies to provide services. 
   (5) Status of, and opportunities for, shared facilities. 
   (6) Accountability for community service needs, including governmental structure and 
operational efficiencies. 
   (7) Any other matter related to effective or efficient service delivery, as required by 
commission policy. 
   (b) In conducting a service review, the commission shall comprehensively review all of the 
agencies that provide the identified service or services within the designated geographic 
area. 
The commission may assess various alternatives for improving efficiency and affordability of 
infrastructure and service delivery within and contiguous to the sphere of influence, 
including, but not limited to, the consolidation of governmental agencies. 
   (c) In conducting a service review, the commission may include a review of whether the 
agencies under review, including any public water system as defined in Section 116275, are 
in compliance with the California Safe Drinking Water Act (Chapter 4 (commencing with 
Section 116270) of Part 12 of Division 104 of the Health and Safety Code). A public water 
system may satisfy any request for information as to compliance with that act by 
submission of the consumer confidence or water quality report prepared by the public 
water system as provided by Section 116470 of the Health and Safety Code. 
   (d) The commission may request information, as part of a service review under this 
section, from identified public or private entities that provide wholesale or retail supply of 
drinking water, including mutual water companies formed pursuant to Part 7 (commencing 
with Section 14300) of Division 3 of Title 1 of the Corporations Code, and private utilities, 
as defined in Section 1502 of the Public Utilities Code. 
(e) In conducting a service review, the commission may include a review of joint-power 
authorities established under the Join Exercise of Powers Act (commencing with Section 
6500) as it deems relevant to fulfilling its purpose and statutory duties.   
   (ef) The commission shall conduct a service review before, or in conjunction with, but no 
later than the time it is considering an action to establish a sphere of influence in 
accordance with Section 56425 or 56426.5 or to update a sphere of influence pursuant to 
Section 56425. 

  

ATTACHMENT 5



6 | P a g e  

 

3.  Amend the “Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act” to revise Section 56133 to clarify JPAs are 
eligible entities to contract with cities/districts for outside services under the 
exemption allowed under subsection (e) as well as clarify LAFCOs role in determining 
application of exemptions.   

 
56133.  (a) A city or district may provide new or extended services by contract or agreement 
outside its jurisdictional boundaries only if it first requests and receives written approval 
from the commission in the affected county. 
   (b) The commission may authorize a city or district to provide new or extended services 
outside its jurisdictional boundaries but within its sphere of influence in anticipation of a 
later change of organization. 
   (c) The commission may authorize a city or district to provide new or extended services 
outside its jurisdictional boundaries and outside its sphere of influence to respond to an 
existing or impending threat to the public health or safety of the residents of the affected 
territory if both of the following requirements are met: 
   (1) The entity applying for the contract approval has provided the commission with 
documentation of a threat to the health and safety of the public or the affected residents. 
   (2) The commission has notified any alternate service provider, including any water 
corporation as defined in Section 241 of the Public Utilities Code, or sewer system 
corporation as defined in Section 230.6 of the Public Utilities Code, that has filed a map 
and a statement of its service capabilities with the commission. 
   (d) The executive officer, within 30 days of receipt of a request for approval by a city or 
district of a contract to extend services outside its jurisdictional boundary, shall determine 
whether the request is complete and acceptable for filing or whether the request is 
incomplete. If a request is determined not to be complete, the executive officer shall 
immediately transmit that determination to the requester, specifying those parts of the 
request that are incomplete and the manner in which they can be made complete. When 
the request is deemed complete, the executive officer shall place the request on the agenda 
of the next commission meeting for which adequate notice can be given but not more than 
90 days from the date that the request is deemed complete, unless the commission has 
delegated approval of those requests to the executive officer. The commission or executive 
officer shall approve, disapprove, or approve with conditions the contract for extended 
services. If the contract is disapproved or approved with conditions, the applicant may 
request reconsideration, citing the reasons for reconsideration. 
   (e) This section does not apply to any of the following contracts or agreements as 
determined by the commission:  
(1) Contracts or agreements solely involving two or more public agencies, including joint-
power authorities, where the public service to be provided is an alternative to, or substitute 
for, public services already being provided by an existing public service provider and where 
the level of service to be provided is consistent with the level of service contemplated by the 
existing service provider. 
(2) Contracts or agreements  . This section does not apply to contracts for the transfer of 
nonpotable or nontreated water. 
(3) . This section does not apply to contracts Contracts or agreements solely involving the 
provision of surplus water to agricultural lands and facilities, including, but not limited to, 
incidental residential structures, for projects that serve conservation purposes or that 
directly support agricultural industries.. However, prior to extending surplus water service 
to any project that will support or induce development, the city or district shall first request 
and receive written approval from the commission in the affected county.  
(4) Contracts or agreementsThis section does not apply to for an extended service that a 
city or district was providing on or before January 1, 2001. 
(5) Contracts or agreements involving . This section does not apply to a local publicly owned 
electric utility, as defined by Section 9604 of the Public Utilities Code, providing electric 
services that do not involve the acquisition, construction, or installation of electric 
distribution facilities by the local publicly owned electric utility, outside of the utility's 
jurisdictional boundaries. 

 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

LAFCO of Monterey County 
   _ 

 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY 
 
 
December 1, 2014 
 
CALAFCO Legislative Committee JPA Work Group 
Attention:  Keene Simonds 
c/o California Association of Local Agency Formation Commissions 
1215 K Street, Suite 1650  
Sacramento, CA 95814 
 
RE:  CALAFCO Joint Powers Authority Work Group, Draft Legislative  
 Proposal, August 26, 2014 
 

Dear Mr. Simonds: 

Thank you for this opportunity to comment on the JPA Work Group’s draft legislative 
proposal.  LAFCO of Monterey County appreciates the JPA Work Group’s efforts to 
strengthen existing relationships between Joint Power Authorities and LAFCOs. 
However, we have identified several concerns with the current proposal, for your 
consideration.  

One of the proposal’s goals is to create a new requirement for Joint Powers Authorities 
to file copies of their agreements and amendments with LAFCOs. LAFCO of Monterey 
County is already aware of key local JPAs and their relationships with local agencies.  
Our staff coordinates directly with JPAs, whenever appropriate, on service and 
boundary issues that affect cities and special districts. The proposed provision would 
result in unnecessary and unfunded new requirements for LAFCOs to track and 
document numerous JPAs.  

Also, the proposal would specifically include Joint Powers Authorities in Municipal 
Service Reviews.  LAFCOs already have this authority under provisions of the Cortese-
Knox-Hertzberg (CKH) Act. For example, the CKH Act provides that: “In conducting a 
service review, the commission shall comprehensively review all of the agencies that provide the 
identified service or services within the designated geographic area” (Section 56430[b], emphasis 
added). LAFCO of Monterey County exercises its discretionary authority to address 
relevant JPAs in Municipal Service Reviews, in order to understand the services 
provided by those JPAs and to analyze their relationships to local agencies.  Our 
authority to obtain information from JPAs was recently reinforced with the passage of 
Assembly Bill 2156, effective January 1, 2015, specifically authorizing LAFCO to request 
and receive information. Any additional CKH language that emphasizes Municipal 
Service Review preparation tasks for JPAs would place an unnecessary and unfunded 
burden on LAFCOs.   

A final concern is the impact of this proposal on the flexibility of public entities to 
accomplish their goals. Increased LAFCO oversight of Joint Powers Authorities could 
have an unintended consequence of impacting JPA members’ abilities to enter into (or 
exit) agreements or meet internal contractual obligations. 

In summary, LAFCOs have adequate existing legal authority to study and consider JPAs 
as part of a study for any given area, and to directly regulate the services and boundaries  

                            2014  
         Commissioners 

 
                                     Chair 
                  Steve Snodgrass  
     Special District Member  

 
                             Vice Chair 
           Sherwood Darington  
                     Public Member 

     
              Fernando Armenta  

     County Member, Alternate 
 

                Louis R. Calcagno  
                  County Member  

         
                       Matt Gourley 
  Public Member, Alternate 

 
                            Joe Gunter   
     Alternate, City Member 

          
                      Maria Orozco 
                         City Member 

                                           
                 Warren E. Poitras 
      Special District Member, 
                                Alternate 

 
                          Ralph Rubio 
                         City Member 

 
                       Simón Salinas 
                   County Member 

                 
                 Graig R. Stephens  
      Special District Member 

 
                                 

                            Staff 
 

           Kate McKenna, AICP 
                 Executive Officer 

 
 

132 W. Gabilan Street, #102 
                 Salinas, CA  93901 

 
                       P. O. Box 1369 
                Salinas, CA  93902 

 
          Voice:  831-754-5838 
              Fax:  831-754-5831 

 
  www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 
 

  



  ATTACHMENT 6 
 

of individual member agencies within JPAs. An increased level of LAFCO involvement with JPAs would 
result in new, unfunded requirements being placed on LAFCOs when adequate and appropriate 
provisions already exist. Finally, increased LAFCO involvement could conflict with the goals and 
contractual arrangements of public entities.  

Thank you again for this opportunity to comment on important and valued work done by your Work 
Group and the CALAFCO Legislative Committee. Please continue to keep us informed throughout the 
process, and feel welcome to contact Executive Officer Kate McKenna for more detailed discussions.   

 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Steve Snodgrass 
Chair 
 
 cc:  Pamela Miller, CALAFCO Executive Director 

 

2 
 



 

LAFCO of Monterey County ______________________________________________________________                     

  
 
KATE McKENNA, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 

DATE:  December 1, 2014 

TO:  Chair and Members of the Formation Commission  

FROM: Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: MID-YEAR WORK PROGRAM REVIEW AND AMENDMENT 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

It is recommended that the Commission: 

1. Receive a report from the Executive Officer; 

2. Receive public comment; 

3. Consider and adopt a Resolution (Attachment 1) approving a mid-year amendment to the adopted 
Fiscal Year 2014-2015 work program; and 

4. Receive a list of anticipated future agenda items for information.  

EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT:  

Attached for action is a recommended change to the Commission’s annual work program (Exhibit A of 
Attachment 1).  The change will add several South County districts and one North County district to the 
list of Municipal Service Reviews and Sphere of Influence studies to be prepared by LAFCO staff in 2015. 
Also attached, as information, is an updated list of anticipated future agenda items.  

Background 

Each spring, the Commission adopts an annual work program as a companion to the annual budget.  The 
work program identifies activities that are essential to accomplish legislative purposes, mandates and 
local priorities. It is routinely reviewed at the mid-point of each fiscal year, and may be updated to reflect 
current priorities and resources.  The Commission also receives monthly reports about upcoming agenda 
items, as information. 

Proposed Amendment To Fiscal Year 2014-2015 Work Program  

The current work program places a priority on staff preparation of Municipal Service Reviews and 
Sphere of Influence studies for three cities and several water, wastewater and solid waste districts, a 
community services district and a health care district.   

Now proposed is the addition of several districts to the list of LAFCO-initiated studies:  cemetery, 
memorial and public recreation districts in South County, and one cemetery district in North County.  
These include eight cemetery districts (Gonzales, Soledad, Greenfield, King City, San Ardo, San Lucas, 
Cholame and Castroville), two public recreation districts (Greenfield and Soledad Mission), and one 
memorial district (Greenfield).  It is timely to focus on South County’s small, often overlapping and 
fiscally-stressed districts (including the two South County water districts that are already listed in the 
work program). Supervisor/Commissioner Salinas’ recent training session for special districts was a 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
P.O. Box 1369                            132 W. Gabilan Street, Suite 102 
Salinas, CA 93902                                               Salinas, CA  93901 
Telephone (831) 754-5838                                 Fax (831) 754-5831 

www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 

AGENDA 
ITEM 
NO. 14 

1 
 

http://www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov/


Mid-Year Work Program Review and Amendment 
December 1, 2014 

positive first step in the process.  Proposed work program changes are listed on Page One of Exhibit A, in 
strike through and underline format.  We anticipate making substantial progress on these LAFCO- 
initiated studies by June 30.  

Anticipated Agenda Items 

A list of anticipated future agenda items is provided in Table 1, the last page of the work program. Staff 
has updated this list to reflect the proposed work program amendment.  

Fiscal Impact 

The proposed work program changes can be absorbed with current budget and staffing levels.  

Alternative Actions 

The Commission may modify the proposed work program or provide other direction. 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Kate McKenna, AICP, 
Executive Officer 

Attachment: Draft Resolution with Exhibit A: Adopted Fiscal Year 2014-2015 Work Program with Recommended 
Changes on Page One.  A list of updated list of anticipated agenda items is provided on the last page (Table 1).  

2 
 



ATTACHMENT 1 

 
THE LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 14-xx 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

AMENDING THE ADOPTED FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 WORK PROGRAM 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Budget and Finance Committee of the Local Agency Formation Commission of 
Monterey County considered a proposed annual work program on February 14, 2014, and made its 
recommendations to the Commission; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Local Agency Formation Commission of Monterey County considered these 

recommendations and adopted an annual work program after conducting a duly noticed public hearing 
on March 24, 2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, upon review of the adopted Fiscal Year 2014-2015 work program’s current 

completion status and emerging opportunities for prioritized review of special districts in the central and 
south Salinas Valley, the Executive Officer has identified and recommended certain adjustments to the 
adopted Fiscal Year 2014-2015 work program;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Local Agency Formation Commission of Monterey County hereby 

approves an amendment to the adopted Fiscal Year 2014-2015 work program as shown in Exhibit A. 
 
UPON MOTION OF Commissioner __________, seconded by Commissioner __________, the 

foregoing resolution is adopted this 1st day of December, 2014 by the following vote: 
 

AYES: Commissioners ____________________ 
NOES: Commissioners ____________________ 
ABSENT: Commissioners ____________________  
ABSTAIN: Commissioners ____________________  

 
 
___________________________________________ 
Steve Snodgrass, Chair  
Local Agency Formation Commission of Monterey County 
 

ATTEST:     I certify that this resolution is a true and 
complete record of said Commission’s actions.    

 
Witness my hand this ___ day of December, 2014 
 
 By: _________________________________ 

Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 
 



EXHIBIT A     Amended Work Program for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 
 

LAFCO of Monterey County 
 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY 
 

FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 WORK PROGRAM  
Adopted March 24, 2014  

Recommended Amendment December 1, 2014 (see marked changes on Page 1) 
 

1.  APPLICATION PROCESSING FUNCTIONS 
 

TASK STATUS COMMENTS 

Process applications for boundary changes in a responsive, 
professional and efficient manner.  
 
(A partial list of potential applications that have been discussed with 
local government agencies is attached to this Work Program.  See 
Table 1.) 

ONGOING 

Priority fast-tracking 
is given to 
applications for 
economic 
development, public 
health and safety, or 
other urgent needs. 

Provide Commission with legally defensible recommendations and 
alternatives, and alert to litigation risks, liabilities and alternatives 
associated with potential actions. 

 
ONGOING 
 

No active or 
anticipated litigation.   

 
 

2.  SPECIAL STUDIES 
 

TASK STATUS COMMENTS 

Prepare Municipal Service Reviews and Sphere of Influence Updates 
for: 

• Carmel Area Wastewater District, 
• Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District, 
• Salinas Valley Memorial Healthcare System, 
• San Ardo Water District, 
• San Lucas County Water District, 
• Boronda County Sanitation District, 
• Monterey County Regional Sanitation District (MRWPCA), 
• Monterey Peninsula Water Management District, 
• Pajaro County Sanitation District,  
• Independent special districts that provide water, cemetery, 

memorial, and recreation services in the central and south 
Salinas Valley area, including:  
 San Ardo and San Lucas County Water Districts,  
 Gonzales, Soledad, Greenfield, King City, San Lucas, San 

Ardo, and Cholame Cemetery Districts,  
 Greenfield Memorial District, and 
 Soledad Mission and Greenfield Public Recreation Districts.  

• Castroville Cemetery District 
• City of Gonzales, 
• City of Seaside  
• City of Soledad, and 
• Marina Coast Water District and Seaside County Sanitation 

District – Administrative Draft MRS were prepared by LAFCO 
staff in 2013. Completion schedule to be determined in 
coordination with the districts. 

 

Goal is to complete 
a series of water, 
wastewater and 
solid waste mgmt. 
district MSRs, per a 
phased, multi-year 
program adopted 
by the Commission 
in 2009. Work on 
this phase started 
in 2013, and is 
planned for 
completion by June 
2015.    
 
Additional MSR 
studies, primarily 
for cities and CSDs 
with active SOI 
plans and other 
priority areas, will 
also be started in 
FY 2014-2015.      

Significant Sphere of 
Influence Updates or 
other changes 
proposed by local 
agencies or area 
property owners may 
require changes to 
the schedule of MSR 
tasks.  MSR schedule 
could also be 
affected by staff time 
required to process 
applications. 



Amended Work Program for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 
 

As needed, update and publish LAFCO local agency and resource 
maps on the LAFCO web site. Also, respond to agency requests for 
custom mapping of boundary/service information. 

ONGOING 

 
Farmland map 
updates are 
underway.   

As needed, develop and update local policies, procedures, 
applications, and flowcharts for Spheres of Influence, annexations, 
reorganizations, and the creation of cities and districts. 

ONGOING 
 
Application packet is 
under review. 

 
 

 
3.  GOVERNMENT AND COMMUNITY RELATIONS 

 
TASK STATUS COMMENTS 

Initiate informal meetings to discuss budget and policy issues with 
Cities, Special Districts, and County, as appropriate. ONGOING  

Attend meetings of the Special Districts Association and the Special 
Districts General Managers’ Group (quarterly), and provide support 
for the election of Special District LAFCO Members. 

ONGOING  

Attend meetings as requested by the City Managers Group and City 
Mayors Association. ONGOING  

Attend meetings as requested by the County of Monterey. ONGOING  

Provide early notice to County, Cities, and Special Districts of issues 
that may affect them, and opportunities to participate in the LAFCO 
process. 

ONGOING  

Post public information on the LAFCO website and review website 
layout, graphics, and content for ease of public use. ONGOING Website update is 

underway. 

Encourage and provide early LAFCO participation in Sphere of 
Influence updates, General Plan updates, City-County-District 
dialogues, and environmental review activities that affect 
government boundaries & services. 

ONGOING  

Participate in regional activities for which LAFCO has indirect or 
direct responsibilities, such as ensuring the consideration of 
Spheres of Influence in the development of the AMBAG Sustainable 
Communities Strategy, as required by State law. 

IN PROGRESS 

Commissioner 
Darington and the 
Executive Officer 
serve on an AMBAG 
advisory committee.  
Executive Officer 
also serves on a 
planning committee. 

Participate in community educational opportunities to promote 
understanding and dialogue with various sectors of the Monterey 
County economy. 

ONGOING  
 

Page 2 of 7   



Amended Work Program for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 
 

Promote Monterey LAFCO’s interests in statewide issues through 
active participation in the California Association of Local Agency 
Formation Commissions (CALAFCO).   

ONGOING 

The Commission 
receives a monthly 
CALAFCO activities 
report, and participates 
in policy, legislative and 
other issues.  
Commissioners and staff 
actively participate in 
CALAFCO conferences, 
workshops, and courses. 
 

 
 

4.  COMMISSION AND COMMITTEE FUNCTIONS 
 

TASK STATUS COMMENTS 

Provide support to ten regularly-scheduled Commission meetings, 
special meetings as needed, and Committee meetings, including the 
provision of public notices, agenda packets, web meeting broadcasts, 
and minutes. 

ONGOING  

Hold monthly agenda review sessions with Chair and Vice-Chair. ONGOING  

Conduct new Commissioner orientations, as needed.  ONGOING  

Continue to participate in the CALAFCO legislative process to ensure 
that local interests are coordinated with policies and activities of the 
statewide organization. Continue to monitor state legislation.  
Continue to provide feedback to legislators and CALAFCO as needed.  
Continue to update local policies and procedures for consistency 
with approved legislation. 

ONGOING  

Provide Commission with regular updates of laws, policies, and 
procedures. ONGOING  

 
 

5.  ADMINISTRATIVE AND HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT 
 

TASK STATUS COMMENTS 

Maintain the LAFCO project tracking system. ONGOING  

Maintain the staff time keeping, cost tracking, and invoicing systems 
for applications. ONGOING  

Comprehensively review and document Policies and Procedures for 
all LAFCO office functions, including human resources rules and 
regulations. 

 

IN PROGRESS  

Identify and support staff training needs and opportunities, including 
professional certification, technical training, and ethics/harassment 
compliance. 

ONGOING  

Page 3 of 7   



Amended Work Program for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 
 

Implement LAFCO’s new Records Management Policy, including 
conversion of paper records to electronic format. This is a multi-year 
task.  

ONGOING  Policy adopted on 
February 24, 2014.   

 
  

Page 4 of 7   



Amended Work Program for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 
 

 
 

 
6.  FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

 
TASK STATUS COMMENTS 

Review and update the project fee schedule and hourly staffing 
rates, as needed. ONGOING No changes needed 

at this time. 

Continue to review existing financial policies and procedures, and 
prepare new financial policies and procedures as necessary. ONGOING No changes needed 

at this time. 

Continue to coordinate with the County Auditor, to obtain annual 
local agency contributions to LAFCO. Work with Auditor and Special 
Districts to implement any update to the cost share formula as may 
be approved by the Districts in 2014.      

ONGOING 

Cost collection 
process was clarified 
by a 2009 LAFCO 
policy. A modified 
cost share formula is 
under review by 
Special Districts in 
2014. 

Complete annual audit for Fiscal Year 2013-2014. 
Start August 2014. 
Complete by 
December 2014. 

Contract for audit 
services was 
approved in Feb. 
2014. 

Conduct periodic review of Benefits, Services and Supplies with the 
goal of continuing to control costs.    ONGOING  

Continue use of a three-year financial forecast to project upcoming 
needs and to provide the resources to meet these needs. ONGOING 

This tool is for 
informal use by the 
Budget & Finance 
Committee.  

 
  

Page 5 of 7   



Amended Work Program for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 
 

 
Table 1:  Partial List of Anticipated Agenda Items as of December 1, 2014 

Anticipated Agenda Items Second Half of FY 2014-2015 (January – June 2015) 

1. South Monterey County Fire Protection District – Sphere of Influence Amendment and 
Annexation of 5,000+ acres in South County. (LAFCO Application No. 13-05 was filed on July 10, 
2013.  Incomplete status, pending the District-County approval of a property tax transfer agreement). 

2. Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Update for Carmel Area Wastewater 
District (Initiated by LAFCO in March 2014).   

3. Carmel Area Wastewater District - Annexation of all or significant portions of the District’s 
existing Sphere of Influence near the mouth of the Carmel Valley and potentially other areas.  
(Application is being prepared; not yet received). 

4. Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Update for Pajaro-Sunny Mesa 
Community Services District (MSR Initiated by LAFCO.  SOI application initiated by County and 
PSMCSD).   

5. Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Update for Monterey Regional Waste 
Management District (Initiated by LAFCO. Hearing expected in early 2015).   

6. Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Study for independent special districts 
that provide water, cemetery, memorial, and recreation services in the central and south Salinas 
Valley (to be initiated by LAFCO).   

7. Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Study for the Castroville Cemetery 
District (to be initiated by LAFCO).   

8. Prepare a comprehensive set of Policies and Procedures for all LAFCO office functions, 
including human resources rules and regulations. 

9. Municipal Service Review for Marina Coast Water District (Initiated by LAFCO. Administrative 
draft was prepared by LAFCO staff and reviewed with District in 2013. In February 2014, MCWD formed 
an ad hoc committee to meet with Seaside County Sanitation District to resolve ongoing issues regarding 
establishment of an appropriate boundary between the two districts. MSR and SOI adoption schedule is 
dependent on the districts). 

10. Municipal Service Review for the Seaside County Sanitation District (Initiated by LAFCO.  
Administrative draft MSR was prepared by LAFCO staff and reviewed with District.  As of December 2014, 
SCSD is coordinating with MCWD to resolve ongoing engineering and feasibility issues, and then will 
arrange a stakeholders meeting to discuss a proposed Sphere of Influence.  MSR and SOI adoption schedule is 
dependent on the two districts). 

11. Marina Coast Water District – Sphere of Influence Amendment and Annexation of Portions 
of the Former Fort Ord to Provide Water and Wastewater Services (to be initiated by District.  
See MSR discussion above). 

12. Seaside County Sanitation District – Sphere of Influence Amendment to Include Portions of 
the Former Fort Ord to Provide Wastewater Services (to be initiated by District.  See MSR 
discussion above). 

13. Municipal Service Review for the City of Seaside (Will be initiated by LAFCO at such time as 
warranted by schedule for potential SOI Amendment, see description below).   

14. City of Seaside – Sphere of Influence Amendment and Annexation of the Proposed Monterey 
Downs Project, Horse Park and Central Coast Veterans Cemetery (to be initiated by City). 

Page 6 of 7   



Amended Work Program for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 
 

 

15. Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Update for Monterey County Regional 
Sanitation District (to be initiated by LAFCO).   

16. Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Update for Monterey Peninsula Water 
Management District (to be initiated by LAFCO).   

Anticipated Agenda Items with No Timeline Estimate 

17. Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Update for City of Soledad (will 
potentially be initiated by LAFCO, if determined necessary depending on the scope of subareas under 
consideration in #2, below).   

18. City of Soledad – Sphere of Influence Amendment and Annexation of Miravale IIB 
Subdivision. (Additional potential inclusions: Existing 10-Unit Residential Development Near Gabilan 
Drive, Front Street freeway interchange safety improvements, 4.35-acre expansion area within the “Soledad 
Entry Commercial Annexation,” Metz Road bypass, Los Coches Adobe vicinity; possibly others). 

19. City of Greenfield – Potential Commercial/Industrial and Residential Annexation 
Proposals (Franscioni, Scheid, Rich, and others). (Initial Preliminary Discussion) 

20. City of Marina – Annexation of Portions of the former Fort Ord within the City’s Sphere of 
Influence. 

21. County Service Area 15 (Serra Village/Toro Park) – Possible reorganization of government 
structure and services. 

22. Soledad Community Health Care District – Comprehensive Sphere of Influence 
Amendment and Annexation. May include a Municipal Services Review update. 

23. Mission Soledad Rural Fire Protection District – Sphere of Influence Amendment and 
Annexation to include build-out of the proposed Paraiso Springs Resort. 

 

Page 7 of 7   



LAFCO of Monterey County _________________________________________________________________                     

  
 
 
KATE MCKENNA, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
 
DATE:  December 1, 2014 

TO:  Chair and Members of the Commission 

FROM:  Kate McKenna, AICP, LAFCO Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: SANTA LUCIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT – PROPOSED ACTIVATION 
OF THE DISTRICT’S LATENT POWER TO PROVIDE BROADBAND 
COMMUNICATION SERVICES (LAFCO FILE NO. 14-04) 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

It is recommended that the Commission conduct a public hearing and adopt the attached draft 
resolution (Attachment 1): 

1. Considering  the finding made by the Santa Lucia Community Services District  that the proposal is 
exempt from environmental review pursuant Sections 15303 and 15304 of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines; 

2. Activating the District’s latent power to provide broadband communication services, and 
3. Authorizing the Executive Officer to hold Conducting Authority Proceedings on Thursday, January 

8, 2015 at 4:00 p.m. in the LAFCO office. 

EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT: 

Background 

The Santa Lucia Community Services District is requesting activation of its latent power to provide 
broadband communication services (high-speed internet and voice-over-internet technology) 
throughout its district boundaries. The District currently provides water, wastewater, road maintenance, 
storm drainage, fire protection, security and transportation services within its approximately 20,000-
acre territory, located in the Carmel Valley area as shown in Attachment 2.  

No public agency currently provides broadband services within the District. Private broadband services 
(AT&T DSL and satellite internet) are currently available in portions of the District’s territory. However, 
these limited existing services do not meet current and anticipated future needs of the District and its 
residents, and private providers have not expressed interest in making the necessary infrastructure 
investments to provide enhanced services within this hilly and sparsely populated district.  

Access to comprehensive, districtwide broadband communications would allow the District to 
implement more efficient, modern equipment to control its private water system and other District 
infrastructure. District residents would also benefit from higher levels of internet service and more 
reliable access to emergency communications.  

LAFCO’s scope of responsibility is limited to authorizing the District to provide broadband services. 
Future development proposals to construct broadband-related communication facilities and equipment 
will be subject to the County of Monterey’s land use regulations and permitting processes.  

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
P.O. Box 1369                            132 W. Gabilan Street, Suite 102 
Salinas, CA 93902                                               Salinas, CA  93901 
Telephone (831) 754-5838                                 Fax (831) 754-5831 

www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 

AGENDA 
ITEM 
NO. 15 

1 
 



 

Authorization of a Latent Power 

The District is requesting that LAFCO authorize a latent power.  A latent power is a function, or class of 
services, allowed for a district under State law but not currently authorized for that specific individual 
district.  The Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act, Section 56021, provides that a district must seek LAFCO 
approval before exercising latent powers.  Section 61100(af) of Community Services District Law 
identifies deployment of broadband facilities and services as a type of service that a community services 
district may provide within its boundaries, subject to LAFCO approval.   

Section 61100(af) requires that “The district shall first make a reasonable effort to identify a private 
person or entity willing to deploy service. The authority granted by this subdivision shall expire when a 
private person or entity is ready, willing, and able to acquire, construct, improve, maintain, and operate 
broadband facilities and to provide broadband services, and to sell those services at a comparable cost 
and quality of service as provided by the district.”  

In its application to LAFCO, the District has demonstrated a reasonable prior effort to identify a willing 
private entity to deploy enhanced broadband services.  The District published a Request for Proposals on 
June 16 and June 20 2014 in the Monterey County Herald and solicited responses through July 17, 2014.  
Additional efforts were made through direct written contacts to broadband providers Mimosa, AT&T, 
Livewire and Comcast. The District received no responses.   

Pursuant to Community Services District Law, Section 61107(b), LAFCO shall not authorize activation of 
a latent power if it determines that another local agency already provides substantially similar services in 
the area proposed to be served.  AT&T DSL and satellite internet services currently provide some limited 
broadband coverage within the District’s boundaries. However, no public agency provides broadband 
services within the District. No public or private entity provides the enhanced, comprehensive 
districtwide broadband services that the District is seeking to deploy if LAFCO approves the proposed 
latent power activation.   

Analysis for a Change of Organization 

In 2008, the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act was amended to define the 
authorization of latent powers as a “Change of Organization.”  The Commission must consider fifteen 
factors in the review of a proposal for a change of organization (Government Code section 56668).  These 
factors are discussed in Sections 2 through 16 of the attached draft resolution (Attachment 1).  As 
outlined in the draft resolution, consideration of these factors supports the proposed activation of latent 
powers.  

Public Agency Referrals and Public Noticing  

LAFCO referred the proposal to public agencies for review and comment in September 2014. In 
November 2014, the application was legally noticed in the Monterey County Herald for a December 1, 
2014 LAFCO public hearing.  Notice of the hearing was mailed to all property owners and registered 
voters within the District and within 300 feet of the District boundaries, posted on the LAFCO website, 
County Government Center and LAFCO office, and mailed to all known interested agencies and 
organizations.  Therefore, LAFCO has fully complied with all requirements and procedures for public 
agency referrals and public noticing. 

District/County Tax Transfer 

The County Administrative Office has determined that a tax transfer is not required for this change of 
organization because no change would be made to the boundaries of the District and the District is not 
requesting a reallocation of taxes. 

2 
 



Environmental Determination 

The District, acting as lead agency, has determined that this proposal is exempt from the requirements of 
the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15303 Minor Construction 
of New Facilities and 15304 Minor Alterations to Land.  LAFCO’s authorization of the District’s latent 
power to provide broadband services is consistent with the scope of the District’s CEQA determination.   
As noted in the Background section, above, LAFCO’s scope of responsibility is limited to authorizing the 
District to provide broadband services. Future development proposals to construct broadband-related 
communication facilities and equipment will be subject to the County of Monterey’s land use regulations 
and permitting processes.1 

Agency and Public Comments 

LAFCO has received no negative comments on the District’s proposal. The Monterey County Planning 
Department indicated that no land use departments or County agencies had comments on the 
application after their review.  Monterey County Regional Fire Protection District has confirmed that the 
District’s future broadband services will not interfere or conflict with emergency communication 
frequencies. 

Fees 

LAFCO collected a deposit of $3,000 toward the cost of processing this application.  In accordance with 
the LAFCO Fee Schedule, LAFCO will charge the full cost of the processing.  Actual costs above the 
initial deposit will be required to be paid prior to the issuance of the Certificate of Completion. 

Recommended Conditions of Approval 

The recommended conditions of approval contained in Section 18 of the draft resolution are: 

a. Services provided by the Santa Lucia Community Services District shall conform to the provisions of 
Community Services District Law; 

b. The proposal is approved subject to the applicant’s payment of all fees incurred in the processing of 
the application consistent with the LAFCO fee schedule.   

The applicant is also required to defend LAFCO if legal action is initiated because of the approval of this 
application.  This requirement is contained in Section 24 of the draft resolution. No conditions require 
review by the U.S. Department of Justice or the State Board of Equalization. Activation of a district’s latent 
power with no boundary changes involved does not require review by these agencies. 

Reconsideration  

Pursuant to Government Code 56895, after the Commission has adopted a resolution making 
determinations, any person or affected agency may file a written request with the LAFCO Executive 

1 If authorized to provide broadband services, the District plans to select a local service provider to develop a more 
specific master plan to best provide this service to the District. The scope of future physical infrastructure needed 
to deploy enhanced broadband services in the District is not yet known. The District’s initial investigations indicate 
that up to six sites may be needed for communications equipment. Depending on further study and final site 
locations, each site’s improvements may include antennae installation on foundations, electrical lines and fiber-
optic cables, and extension of service roads for maintenance and repair. The District plans to utilize a portion of its 
existing capital reserves (approximately $3.3m as of June 30, 2014 in the District’s most recent audit report) to 
construct the required infrastructure.  To amortize the estimated $250,000 in up-front costs and to fund ongoing 
operations and maintenance, the District will charge monthly service fees and/or propose a parcel-based benefit 
assessment district; the latter would be subject to a Proposition 218 election.  

 
3 
 

                                                 



Officer requesting amendments to, or reconsideration of, the resolution.  The person or agency shall file 
the written request within 30 days of the adoption of the resolution.     

Conducting Authority (“Protest”) Proceedings 

State law requires a subsequent Conducting Authority hearing for a change of organization unless all 
property owners give their prior written approval of the proposal.  State law requires that this second 
hearing follow the 30-day reconsideration period of the Commission’s approval of a resolution making 
determinations.  Given the number of parcels and owners affected, obtaining written consent of all 
property owners was not practical for this change of organization.    

Once the Conducting Authority hearing is noticed, registered voters and landowners within the Santa 
Lucia Community Services District have an ability to file written protests.  Written protests may also be 
submitted at the protest hearing.  Following the close of the protest hearing, according to Government 
Code section 57075(a), the Commission shall order the change of organization or reorganization subject 
to confirmation by the registered voters residing within the affected territory if written protests have 
been filed and not withdrawn by either of the following:  1) At least 25 percent, but less than 50 percent, 
of the registered voters residing in the affected territory, or 2) At least 25 percent of the number of 
owners of land who also own at least 25 percent of the assessed value of land within the affected 
territory.  The proposed change of organization or reorganization shall be abandoned if the Commission 
finds that written protests filed and not withdrawn prior to the conclusion of the hearing represent 50 
percent or more of the voters residing in the territory. 

Because no known controversy exists and no significant protest is anticipated to the District’s proposal, 
staff recommends that the Commission delegate the Conducting Authority hearing to the Executive 
Officer with a proposed date of January 8, 2015 at 4:00 pm in the LAFCO office. After satisfaction of any 
remaining conditions of approval, a Certificate of Completion will be recorded following this hearing 
unless the threshold for sufficient protest is met. 

Conclusion  

The proposed activation of powers is consistent with the factors to be considered in the review of a 
proposal for the activation of latent powers.  These factors, and an analysis of the proposal’s consistency 
with them, are included in the attached draft resolution (Attachment 1).  Staff, therefore, recommends 
adoption of the attached draft resolution to approve the District’s proposal to activate the latent power 
to provide broadband communication services.  

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS 

The Commission may consider these or other alternatives: 

1. Deny the requested activation of latent powers, in which case the item should be continued to 
the January 26, 2015 Commission meeting with direction to staff to prepare a new draft 
resolution based on the Commission’s findings for denial, or    

2. Modify, delete, or add any findings, determinations, or conditions of approval.      

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

Kate McKenna, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
Attachments:    

1. Draft Resolution 
2. Map of Santa Lucia Community Services District  

4 
 



cc:    Forrest Arthur, General Manager, Santa Lucia Community Services District 

TKB:dm:km  

5 
 



ATTACHMENT 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 14 – 0X 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY 
COUNTY ACTIVATING THE SANTA LUCIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT’S LATENT 

POWER TO PROVIDE BROADBAND COMMUNICATION SERVICES (LAFCO FILE NO. 14-04) 
 

RESOLVED, by the Local Agency Formation Commission of Monterey County, State of California, 
that 
 

WHEREAS, the Santa Lucia Community Services District currently exercises the following powers 
as allowed by the Community Services District Law (Government Code section 61000 et seq.), and 
pursuant to LAFCO Resolution 98-08: 

• Water Supply [Government Code section 61100 (a)]; 
• Wastewater [Government Code section 61100 (b)]; 
• Storm Drainage [Government Code section 61100 (b)]; 
• Fire Protection [Government Code section 61100 (d)]; 
• Security [Government Code section 61100 (j)]; and 
• Road Maintenance [Government Code section 61100 (l)]; 
• Transportation Services [Government Code section 61100 (p)]; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act, Section 56021, provides that a district must seek 
LAFCO approval before exercising latent powers; and 
  
 WHEREAS, Section 61100(af) of Community Services District Law identifies deployment of 
broadband facilities and services as a type of service that a community services district may provide within 
its boundaries, subject to LAFCO approval; and   

 
WHEREAS, the Santa Lucia Community Services District held a duly noticed  public hearing and 

passed Resolution No. 14-09 dated August 25, 2014, requesting that LAFCO activate the District’s latent 
power to provide broadband communication services within District boundaries in accordance with the 
requirement of law  [per Government Code Section 61100 (af) and CKH Sections Sections 56824.10, 56824.12, 
and 56824.14 ]; and   

 
WHEREAS, an application was filed by the Santa Lucia Community Services District, and 

accepted by the Executive Officer of the Local Agency Formation Commission, pursuant to Title 6, 
Division 3, commencing with Section 56000, et seq. of the Government Code; and 

 
WHEREAS, no public agency currently provides broadband services within the District. Private 

broadband services (AT&T DSL and satellite internet) are currently available in portions of the District’s 
territory. However, these limited existing services do not meet current and anticipated future needs of the 
District and its residents, and private providers have not expressed interest in making the necessary 
infrastructure investments to provide enhanced services; and 

 
WHEREAS, a Certificate of Filing was issued for the application on November 3, 2014; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Executive Officer, pursuant to Government Code section 56658, set December 1, 

2014 as the hearing date on the proposal and gave the required notice of hearing; and 
 



ATTACHMENT 1 

 WHEREAS, the Executive Officer, pursuant to Government Code section 56665, has reviewed the 
proposal and prepared a report, including recommendations thereon, and has furnished a copy of the report 
to each person entitled to a copy; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Commission, on December 1, 2014, heard from interested parties, considered the 
proposal and the report of the Executive Officer and considered the factors determined by the Commission 
to be relevant to the proposal, including, but not limited to, factors specified in Government Code section 
56668; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the public hearing by the Commission was held upon the date and at the time and place 
specified in the notice of hearing and in any order or orders continuing such hearing;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Local Agency Formation Commission of Monterey County does HEREBY 
RESOLVE, DETERMINE, AND ORDER as follows: 
 
 Section 1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct. 
 
 Section 2.  The Santa Lucia Community Services District is the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) Lead Agency for this proposal.  LAFCO is a Responsible Agency.  In its August 25, 2014 
resolution initiating the proposed consolidation, the Santa Lucia Community Services District’s Board of 
Directors resolved that the proposal is categorically exempt from CEQA pursuant to CEQA Guidelines 
section 15303 Construction of Small Facilities and 15304 Minor Alterations to Land. The Commission has 
considered the categorical exemption adopted by District and determined that LAFCO’s authorization of the 
District’s latent power to provide broadband services is consistent with the scope of the District’s CEQA 
determination.    
 
 Section 3.   The Commission has considered all of the factors set forth in Government Code 
section 56668 in its review of the latent power request, as follows:   

a. Population and population density; land area and land use; per capita assessed valuation; topography, natural 
boundaries, and drainage basins; proximity to other populated areas; the likelihood of significant growth in the area, and 
in adjacent incorporated and unincorporated areas, during the next 10 years (Gov. Code § 56668(a).) 

The Santa Lucia Preserve, (“The Preserve”) encompasses 20,000 square acres of hills and valleys south of 
Carmel Valley in an area formerly known as Rancho San Carlos and includes 298 estate properties and 
preserved open spaces managed by the Santa Lucia Conservancy. The proposal by the Santa Lucia CSD 
is to provide enhanced broadband communication services to the Preserve that no private carriers have 
expressed interest in providing. Such service is meant to enhance public safety and communication 
services through modern technology and will not negatively affect existing populations or land uses.  

b. The need for organized community services; the present cost and adequacy of governmental services and controls in the area; 
probable future needs for those services and controls; probable effect of the proposed incorporation, formation, annexation, 
or exclusion and of alternative courses of action on the cost and adequacy of services and controls in the area and adjacent 
areas.  (Gov. Code § 56668(b).)    

The Santa Lucia Community Services District is the only governmental agency in the Santa Lucia 
Preserve that is capable of providing enhanced broadband communication services to meet current and 
future needs.  After a reasonable effort by the District to identify a private person or entity willing to 
deploy service, no business expressed interest in providing enhanced broadband services within the 
District. The District has requested the ability to provide the platform for such service to meet the public 
health and safety needs of the community and to provide modern communications.   

The District plans to utilize a portion of its existing capital reserves (approximately $3.3m as of June 30, 
2014 in the District’s most recent audit report) to construct the required infrastructure. To amortize 



ATTACHMENT 1 

these up-front costs and to finance operations and maintenance, the District will charge monthly service 
fees and/or propose a parcel-based benefit assessment district, subject to a Proposition 218 election. 

c. The effect of the proposed action and of alternative actions, on adjacent areas, on mutual social and economic interests, 
and on the local governmental structure of the county.  (Gov. Code § 56668(c).)  

The activation of a latent power will have no effect on adjacent properties, or on mutual social and 
economic interests, or on local governmental structure of the County.   

d. The conformity of both the proposal and its anticipated effects with both the adopted commission policies on providing 
planned, orderly, efficient patterns of urban development, and the policies and priorities set forth in Section 56377.  (Gov. 
Code § 56668(d). 

The activation of a latent power to provide enhanced broadband communication services will allow 
the District to provide improved communications that facilitate the public welfare and safety, and will 
not impose development contrary to the enjoyment of open spaces or use of agricultural lands.   

e. The effect of the proposal on maintaining the physical and economic integrity of agricultural lands, as defined in Section 
56106.  (Gov. Code § 56668(e).) 

The proposal will have no impact on maintaining the physical and economic integrity of agricultural 
lands. There are no commercial agricultural uses in the Santa Lucia Preserve. 

f. The definiteness and certainty of the boundaries of the territory, the nonconformance of proposed boundaries with lines 
of assessment or ownership, the creation of islands or corridors of unincorporated territory, and other similar matters 
affecting the proposed boundaries.  (Gov. Code § 56668(f).) 

No boundaries will be changed by the exercise of a latent power to provide enhanced communication 
services across the Community Service District area. 

g. A regional transportation plan adopted pursuant to Section 65080 [of the Government Code] and consistency with 
city or county general and specific plans.  (Gov. Code § 56668(g).) 

The activation of latent powers will not change traffic volumes, flows or capacity and therefore is not 
covered by the Regional Transportation Plan.  Telecommunications facilities are consistent with 
allowed uses in the unincorporated areas of Monterey County, subject to applicable County zoning 
requirements such as the issuance of Use Permits.  

h. The sphere of influence of any local agency, which may be applicable to the proposal being reviewed.  (Gov. Code §§ 
56375.5, 56668(h).) 

The Santa Lucia Community Services District lies within Monterey County Regional Fire Protection 
District (MCFPD) and Sphere of Influence. LAFCO solicited comment from the MCFPD and received 
no negative comments.   

i. The comments of any affected local agency or other public agency.  (Gov. Code § 56668(i).) 

Through the Monterey County Resource Management Agency’s “clearinghouse” function, the land use 
departments and agencies of Monterey County have reviewed the application and have no comments. 
Monterey County Regional Fire Protection District has confirmed that the District’s future broadband 
services will not interfere or conflict with emergency communication frequencies. 

j. The ability of the newly formed or receiving entity to provide the services which are the subject of the application to the 
area, including the sufficiency of revenues for those services following the proposed boundary change. (Gov. Code § 
56668(j).) 

The Santa Lucia Community Services District is an existing entity proposing to provide broadband 
communications capabilities through the activation of a new latent power and has anticipated the 
probable cost of initially providing these new enhanced communication services as follows: a) 



ATTACHMENT 1 

Estimated Capital Cost of installing the infrastructure would be approximately $225,000; b) Annual 
repair and maintenance estimate $25,000; and c) Monthly service cost of ISP and other direct operating 
costs: $150.00 - $400.00 per month per connection, depending on level of service. The District plans to 
utilize a portion of its existing capital reserves (approximately $3.3m as of June 30, 2014 in the 
District’s most recent audit report) to construct the required infrastructure. No boundaries are 
proposed for adjustment.  

k. Timely availability of water supplies adequate for projected needs as specified in Section 65352.5.  (Gov. Code § 56668(k).) 

No water will be used for the activation of these latent powers.  No significant amount of water will be 
used to provide broadband communications services to the Santa Lucia Community Services District. 

l. The extent to which the proposal will affect a city or cities and the county in achieving their respective fair shares of the 
regional housing needs as determined by the appropriate council of governments consistent with Article 10.6 (commencing 
with Section 65580) of Chapter 3 of Division 1 of Title 7.  (Gov. Code § 56668(l).) 

The proposal will not affect the County’s ability to achieve, or not achieve, its respective fair share of 
regional housing needs.      

m. Any information or comments from the landowner or owners, voters, or residents of the affected territory.   (Gov. Code § 
56668(m).) 

LAFCO has received no comments from property owners, voters, or residents of the affected territory.  
In the LAFCO application though, the District has expressed that the latent powers proposal is the 
result of many requests for such an improved communications service to better protect the health, 
welfare and safety of the territory.  

n. Any information relating to existing land use designations. (Gov. Code § 56668(n).) 

The area is designated RC-40-D-S Resource Conservation, 40 acre minimum parcel size, Design Control 
and Site Plan Review zoning districts.  The Property is also subject to the allowances of the Rancho San 
Carlos Comprehensive Development Plan.   

o. The extent to which the proposal will promote environmental justice.  As used in this subdivision, "environmental justice" 
means the fair treatment of people of all races, cultures, and incomes with respect to the location of public facilities and 
the provision of public services.   (Gov. Code § 56668(o).) 

There are no economic justice issues applicable to the proposal. 

p. The exchange of property tax.  (Revenue and Taxation Code § 99.01.)  

The County Administrative Office has determined that a tax transfer is not required for this change of 
organization because no change would be made to the boundaries of the District and the District is 
not requesting a reallocation of taxes. 

Section 4.     Pursuant to Section 61100(af) of the Community Services District Law, “The 
authority granted by this subdivision {61100(af)} shall expire when a private person or entity is ready, 
willing, and able to acquire, construct, improve, maintain, and operate broadband facilities and to provide 
broadband services, and to sell those services at a comparable cost and quality of service as provided by 
the district. At that time, the district shall do one of the following:   

(1) Diligently transfer its title, ownership, maintenance, control, and operation of those broadband 
facilities and services at a fair market value to that private person or entity.  

(2) Lease the operation of those broadband facilities at a fair market value to that private person or 
entity.” 

Section 5.  This proposal is approved subject to the following terms and conditions:   



ATTACHMENT 1 

(1) Services provided by the Santa Lucia Community Services District shall be consistent with the 
Community Services District Law commencing with Government Code section 61000, including 
the provisions of Section 61100(af); 

(2) The proposal is approved subject to the applicant’s payment of all fees incurred in the processing 
of the application consistent with the LAFCO fee schedule.  

Section 6   As required by Section 56824.14(a), the Commission has determined that the District 
will have sufficient revenue from capital reserves, planned service charges and/or adoption of parcel fees to 
build and operate the new broadband service.   

Section 7.  The applicants shall defend at their sole expense any action brought against 
LAFCO, the Commission and its staff, because of the approval of this application.  The applicants will 
reimburse LAFCO for any court costs and attorneys’ fees which may be required by a court to pay as a 
result of such action.  LAFCO may, at its discretion, after consultation with the applicants, participate in 
the defense of any such action; but such participation shall not relieve applicants of their obligations under 
this condition.  The obligation on the part of the applicants to indemnify LAFCO is effective upon the 
adoption of this resolution and does not require any further action. 

 Section 8.   The activation of a latent power to provide enhanced broadband communications 
to the residents of the Santa Lucia Community Services District, consistent with Government Code section 
61100(af), is hereby approved. The Executive Officer is hereby authorized and directed to mail certified 
copies of the resolution in the manner and as provided in Section 56882 of the Government Code. 

Section 9.  A Certificate of Completion shall not be issued until all terms and conditions have 
been met. 

Section 10.  If a Certificate of Completion for a change of organization or reorganization has 
not been filed within one year after the Commission approves a proposal for that proceeding, the 
proceeding shall be deemed abandoned unless prior to the expiration of that year the Commission 
authorizes an extension of time for that completion. The extension may be for any period deemed 
reasonable to the Commission for completion of necessary prerequisite actions by any party. If a 
proceeding has not been completed because of the order or decree of a court of competent jurisdiction 
temporarily enjoining or restraining the proceedings, this shall not be deemed a failure of completion and 
the one-year period shall be tolled for the time that order or decree is in effect [Government Code section 
57001].   

 Section 11. The affected territory meets the definition of “inhabited territory” as defined in 
Government Code section 56046.  All property owners within the affected territory have not consented in 
writing to the proposal.  In accordance with Government Code section 57000, Conducting Authority 
proceedings are therefore required. The Commission hereby authorizes the Executive Officer to hold 
Conducting Authority proceedings on January 8, 2015 at 4:00 pm in the offices of LAFCO of Monterey 
County. 

  
UPON MOTION OF Commissioner _________, seconded by Commissioner _______, the foregoing 

resolution is adopted this 1st day of December, 2014 by the following vote: 
 
AYES: Commissioners  
NOES:  Commissioners 
ABSENT: Commissioner  
  
   ___________________________________ 

Steve Snodgrass, Chair 
Local Agency Formation Commission of Monterey County 
 

 



ATTACHMENT 1 

ATTEST: I certify that the within instrument is a true and complete copy 
of the original resolution of said Commission on file within this 
office.    

 
 Witness my hand this ___ day of December, 2014 
 
 By: ____________________________________________ 
        Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 



CARMEL VALLEY RD

LA
U

R
E

LE
S

G
RA

DE

RANCHO
SAN

C
ARLOS RD

ROBINSON
C

AN
Y

O
N

RD

RANCHO SAN CARLOS RD

A

Carmel River

SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Ü
0 1 2

Miles

P.O. Box 1369
Salinas, CA 93902
Telephone (831) 754-5838

132 W. Gabilan St., Suite 102
Salinas, CA 93901

FAX (831) 754-5831

SANTA LUCIA
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION
LAFCO of Monterey County

Last LAFCO-Approved Change: 10/22/2002
Coterminus Sphere of Influence Adopted 10/28/2002

Map Prepared: 10/30/2014

Carmel Valley 
Village

District Boundary

Proposal: Activation of the District's 
latent power to provide districtwide 
broadband services, LAFCO File 14-04.

ATTACHMENT 2



Agenda Item No. 16



Agenda Item No. 17


	0. Agenda Final LAFCOCommiss Mtg 12-1-14
	LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY

	1. Draft Resolution EOR Louis Calcagno  12-1-14
	KATE McKENNA, AICP
	Executive Officer


	2. Draft EOR Cert of Recog Henry Gowin 12-1-14
	KATE McKENNA, AICP
	Executive Officer


	3. DRAFT EO - CALAFCO Award Presentations 12-1-14
	Kate McKenna, AICP
	Executive Officer


	4. Staff Introductions EOR 12-1-14
	Kate McKenna, AICP
	Executive Officer


	5. DRAFT  9-22-14 LAFCO Minutes 12-1-14
	LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY

	6. DRAFT Notes 11-7-14 BF Ctte
	LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY

	7. DRAFT Register of Checks EOR  12-1-14
	KATE McKENNA, AICP

	7.1 Attach October Warrant Register 12-1-14
	October 2014

	8. EOR Schedule 2015 LAFCO Regular Meetings  12-2-14
	Salinas, CA 93902  Salinas, CA 93901
	KATE McKENNA, AICP

	8.1  Attach 2015 Schedule LAFCO Regr Mtg Dates 12-2-14
	LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY
	January 26


	9. Draft EOR BudgAmend 1 FY 2014-15 Budg 12-1-14
	KATE McKENNA, AICP
	Executive Officer


	9.1 Attach ResoBudgAmend 1 FY 2014-15 12-1-14
	9.2 Attach Budget Amend 1 FY 2014-15 12-1-14
	Bud Amend #1 FY 2013-2014 

	10. Draft EOR Audit- FY Ending June 30, 2014 12-1-14
	KATE McKENNA, AICP
	Executive Officer


	10.1  LAFCO DRAFT Audit Report-Fin Statmnts 2014
	11. Draft EOR Fin Statmnt June 30, 2014 12-1-14
	KATE McKENNA, AICP
	Executive Officer


	11.1 Attach  June 30, 2014 Draft Fin Statmnt 12-1-14
	12. Draft EOR Fin Statmnt Sept 30, 2014  12-1-14
	KATE McKENNA, AICP
	Executive Officer


	12.1 Attach Sept 30, 2014Fin Statmnt 12-1-14
	13.  CALAFCO EO report 12-1-14
	Kate McKenna, AICP
	Executive Officer


	13.1 CALAFCO Attach Ann Conf Prog  12-1-14
	13.2 CALAFCO - Attach Pamela Miller letter 12-1-14
	13.3 CALAFCO Attach 2015 Calendar 12-1-14
	13.4 THE SPHERE Oct. 2014
	By Ryan Thomas Dunn
	SWALE’s services include efficient analysis of boundaries and districts in MSRs; knowledgeable solutions to water resource issues; collaboration with Commissioners and elected officials; creative and inclusive methods of engaging the public; experienc...


	13.5 CALAFCO - JPA WorkGrpApprovedProp 12-1-14
	13.6 CALAFCO JPA draft comment letter
	LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY

	14  Mid-Year EO Review and Amend Adopt WorkProg 12-1-14
	Kate McKenna, AICP
	Executive Officer


	14.1 Attach Work Program Amend Resolution 12-1-14
	14.2 Exhibit A Reso-Amended Work Program 12-1-14
	LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY

	15. SantaLuciaCSD-EO Report-LatentPower broadband for 12-1-14
	Kate McKenna, AICP
	Executive Officer
	Analysis for a Change of Organization


	District/County Tax Transfer
	Environmental Determination


	15. 1 SantaLuciaCSD - Resolution 12-1-14
	16. Corresp to KMK 2014-ETynan-CastrovCSD - 12-1-14
	17. Corresp to Kate McKenna 2014 frm SupvSalinas 12-1-14



